
 www.ofallon.org Broadcast “live” on Charter Ch. 993 and AT&T U-Verse Ch. 99 

 
 

 

CITY OF O’FALLON 
 

GARY L. GRAHAM  ALDERMAN    
Mayor  Gene McCoskey Ward 1 Matt Smallheer Ward 4 

  Richie Meile Ward 1 Michael Bennett Ward 5 
PHILIP A. GOODWIN DAVID H. HURSEY Jerry Albrecht Ward 2 Courtney Marsh Ward 5 
City Clerk City Treasurer Robert Kueker Ward 2 Ray Holden Ward 6 

  Jerry Mouser Ward 3 Ned Drolet Ward 6 
Walter Denton  Kevin Hagarty Ward 3 David Cozad Ward 7 
City Administrator  Herb Roach Ward 4 Harlan Gerrish Ward 7 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

A G E N D A 
Monday, March 21, 2016 

7:00 P.M. – Council Chambers 
          
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
III.   ROLL CALL 
 
IV.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 7, 2016 
 
V. PUBLIC HEARING – 1.  Annexation agreement with Michael and Laurie Phillips for 

approximately 1.297 acres located at 10537 Rieder Road, Lebanon 
    
VI.   REPORTS 

A. Residents of O’Fallon – This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for any 
resident wishing to address Council. The Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1) 
mandates NO action shall be taken on matters not listed on this agenda,  
but Council may direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter to a committee. 
Please provide City Clerk with name & address; speak into microphone; limit 
presentation to 3 minutes; and avoid repetitious comments. Thank you.  

   
B. Clerk’s Report  

1.  Request from the Rotary Clubs in O’Fallon to conduct a raffle from April 7th – 
October 29, 2016 for a Chevrolet LTZ truck and other prizes 
2. Request from the Dania Shrine Club to conduct a raffle from April 1 – April 30, 
2016 for a wheelbarrow of alcohol, electronic devices and various donated items 
3.  Request from O’Fallon Moose Lodge 2608 to conduct a raffle from March 22 – 
April 30, 2016 for packages of meat 
4.  Request from Four Hearts Foundation, Inc. to conduct a raffle for a Split the Pot 
raffle on April 2, 2016 
5.  Request from the Women of the Moose 2281 to conduct a raffle on April 10, 2016 
for a St. Louis Blues blanket 
6. Request from the St. Clair County Extension & Educational Foundation to conduct 
a raffle for gardening supplies from May 1 – June 4, 2016 
 

http://www.ofallon.org/


C. Mayor’s Report 
1.  Reminder that this month’s Southwestern Illinois Council of Mayors will hold their 
meeting at the Casino Queen in East St. Louis on Thursday, March 24th.   
 

VII. RESOLUTIONS – 
ITEM 1 – Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign an annexation agreement with 
Michael and Laurie Phillips for 10537 Rieder Road 
ITEM 2 – Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into an intergovernmental 
agreement with the Village of Shiloh to provide radio communication and computer 
aided dispatch for the law enforcement asset of the Village of Shiloh Police Department 
ITEM 3 – Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into an intergovernmental 
agreement with the Board of Education of O’Fallon Township High School District 203 
that allows the City to establish a School Resource Officer Program as a joint 
cooperative effort for both the school district’s Smiley Street Campus and Milburn 
School Road campus 
ITEM 4 – Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a contract with Information 
Technologies, Inc (ITI) to deliver CAD, RMS, JMS and Mobile services 

 
VIII.  ORDINANCES   

A. 1st reading – 
 
B. 2ND Reading –  
ITEM 5 – Ord. amending Ord. 623, Zoning, development known as “CR Holland 
Commercial Real Estate Office” located at 718 West Highway 50 
ITEM 6 – Ord. approving the transfer of Volume Cap in connection with private activity 
issues and related matters 

 
IX.   STANDING COMMITTEES 

1.  Community Development – a) Motion to approve the Special Event request from 
O’Fallon Parks & Recreation Summer Camp Campaign to erect signs from March 22 – 
May 2, 2016 
 b) Motion to approve the Special Event request from Happy Day Tropical Sno to 
operate from 600 Southview Plaza and 6000 Old Collinsville Road from April 2016 
through October 2016, with conditions 
2.  Public Works  
3.  Public Safety - Minutes Attached 
4.  Finance and Administration 

  a) Motion to approve Warrant #346 in the amount of $809,733.38 
5.  Parks/Environment – Minutes Attached  
 

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION – Occasionally, the Council may go into closed session in order 
to discuss such items covered under 5 ILCS 120/2 (b) which are as follows:  Legal Matters; 
Purchase, Lease or Sale of Real Estate; Setting of a price for sale or lease of property owned 
by the public body; Employment/appointment matters; Business matters or Security/criminal 
matters and may possibly vote on such items after coming out of closed session. 
 
XI.   ACTION TAKEN ON EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS 
 
XII.  ADJOURNMENT 



O’FALLON CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

March 7, 2016 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by City Clerk Goodwin who led the 
Council in “The Pledge of Allegiance.”   
 
Philip Goodwin, City Clerk, called the roll:  Gene McCoskey, present; Richie Meile, 
present; Jerry Albrecht, present; Robert Kueker, present; Jerry Mouser, present; Kevin 
Hagarty, present; Herb Roach, present; Matthew Smallheer, present; Michael Bennett, 
excused; Courtney Marsh, present; Ray Holden, present; Ned Drolet, present; David 
Cozad, present; Harlan Gerrish, present.  A quorum was declared present. 
 
City Clerk Goodwin announced that Mayor Graham was excused.  He asked for a 
motion from the floor to appoint a Mayor Pro Tem.  Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded 
by G. McCoskey to approve Alderman J. Mouser as Mayor Pro Tem.  All ayes.  Motion 
carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Mayor Pro Tem Mouser asked for approval of the minutes.  
Motion was made by J. Albrecht and seconded by K. Hagarty to approve the minutes of 
February 16, 2016.  All ayes.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – None scheduled. 
 
RESIDENTS:  Mayor Pro Tem Mouser asked if anyone wished to come forward to 
speak to the Council.   
 
V. Malare requested an update on the presidential street improvements.  J. Taylor said 
all easements have been executed.  The bidding will be in April and the start of 
construction will begin in May, if all goes well.   
 
V. Malare asked if the Public Works department was ready for the upcoming heavy 
rains, and J. Taylor replied that they are prepared. 
 
REPORTS:   
 
Clerk’s Report:  P. Goodwin read the following requests: 
 

1. Request from St. Nicholas Church to conduct a raffle for the Nickfest from 
March 8 – May 21, 2016 for 100 chances 
 
2. Request from O’Fallon Band Boosters to conduct a raffle for their Trivia 
Night on April 2, 2016 for a Split the Pot 
 
3.  Request from Lifelong Music in O’Fallon Schools to conduct a raffle for 
their event on March 10, 2016 for a Split the Pot 



City Council Meeting  Page 2 of 5 
March 7, 2016 
 

 
4. Request from VFW Post 805 to conduct a raffle from March 8, 2016 - 
December 31, 2016 for various cash prizes 
 
5.  Request from Knights of Columbus #592 to conduct a raffle from March 
18, 2016 - March 25, 2016 for two bone-in hams 
 

Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by G. McCoskey to approve the requests.  All ayes.  
Motion carried. 
 
P. Goodwin then read a request from the Marine Corp League 74 (Under VFW Post 
805) to conduct a roadblock on Saturday, May 7, 2016 from 8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. at the 
intersection of Lincoln and State Street, as well as a request from the O’Fallon Fairview 
Heights Lions Club to conduct a roadblock on Friday, October 7, 2016 from 7– 9:00 
a.m., 11:30 – 1:00 p.m., 3 – 5:30 p.m. and Saturday, October 8, 2016 from 11:00 a.m. – 
1:00 p.m. at the intersection of Lincoln and State Street and North Smiley and State. 

 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by R. Kueker to approve the requests.  All ayes, 
except for N. Drolet.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor’s Report:   Mayor Pro Tem Mouser asked for a moment of silence for Sheila 
Sullivan, wife of former city engineer Dennis. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mouser asked Chief Van Hook to come forward.  Chief Van Hook 
announced the recipients for the Chief’s Commendation:  Telecommunicators Ebony 
Clemons, Michelle Foster and Melanie Kenyon and a civilian commendation to Jennifer 
Wolf who assisted the department in the apprehension of car robbery suspects on 
January 28, 2016.  He introduced Daryl Ostendorf, the telecommunications supervisor, 
Lt. Rob Schmidke, and Captains Mark Berry and James Cavins.  He also emphasized 
the importance of having a local 911 system. 
 
RESOLUTIONS:  Mayor Pro Tem said Item 3 will be held until after Executive Session. 
 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by G. McCoskey to approve Item 1, a Resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to enter into an agreement with Development Strategies, Inc. for 
consulting services for a contract in an amount not to exceed $8,000. 
 
H. Roach asked about the two studies that were prepared in May for a feasibility study 
and in February for a Comprehensive Plan as he has not seen the results.  He would 
like to review them before going further.  M. Hutchison replied that the first study was 
done by Game On who approached the city about bringing in tournaments and joint 
ventures.  The second study on the recreation center should come in next week.  The 
third study will look at the economic impact from the revenue generated by traveling 
teams and the income from local participants.  W. Denton added that the Council 
requested the economic impact on businesses and the local economy. 
 



City Council Meeting  Page 3 of 5 
March 7, 2016 
 

ROLL CALL: McCoskey, aye; Meile, aye; Albrecht, aye; Kueker, aye; Mouser, aye; 
Hagarty, aye; Roach, no; Smallheer, aye; Marsh, aye; Holden, aye; Drolet, aye; Cozad, 
aye; Gerrish, aye.  Ayes – 12; Nos – 1.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by G. McCoskey to approve Item 2, a Resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to enter into an agreement with Green Machine Lawn & 
Landscaping for Municipal Mowing in the amount not to exceed $2,075 per cycle. 
 
R. Kueker asked about receiving only two bids and why it did not go to committee.  M. 
Hutchison replied that this is the third cycle of a three year term.  It just depends, as we 
do the same process of advertising.   They have to be able to be bonded and carry 
insurance.  It is a reoccurring contract, so they do not normally take this to the 
committee. 
 
ROLL CALL: McCoskey, aye; Meile, aye; Albrecht, aye; Kueker, aye; Mouser, aye; 
Hagarty, aye; Roach, aye; Smallheer, aye; Marsh, aye; Holden, aye; Drolet, aye; 
Cozad, aye; Gerrish, aye.  Ayes – 13; Nos – 0.  All ayes.  Motion carried. 
 
ORDINANCES:  
 
1st Reading –   
 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by K. Hagarty to approve Item 4, an Ordinance 
amending Ord. 623, Zoning, development known as “CR Holland Commercial Real 
Estate Office” located at 718 West Highway 50.  All ayes.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by H. Gerrish to approve Item 5, an Ordinance 
approving the transfer of Volume Cap in connection with private activity issues and 
related matters. 
 
ROLL CALL: McCoskey, aye; Meile, aye; Albrecht, aye; Kueker, aye; Mouser, aye; 
Hagarty, aye; Roach, aye; Smallheer, aye; Marsh, aye; Holden, aye; Drolet, aye; 
Cozad, aye; Gerrish, aye.  Ayes – 13; Nos – 0.  All ayes.  Motion carried. 
 
2nd Reading –  
 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by G. McCoskey to approve Item 6, an Ordinance 
adopting a new section 37.26 of Chapter 37 (Civil Emergency) regarding maintenance 
of the City’s Dispatch Call Center.  All ayes.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by K. Hagarty to approve Item 7, an Ordinance 
rescinding Ord. 3892, Towing Companies for the Department of Public Safety.  All ayes.  
Motion carried.  
 



City Council Meeting  Page 4 of 5 
March 7, 2016 
 

STANDING COMMITTEES –  
 
Community Development: Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by G. McCoskey to 
approve the Special Event requests for the following: 

 
a)  Motion to approve the Special Event request from the International 

Assn. Legions of Honor to erect a tent in the Hilton Garden Inn parking lot for 
their Annual Convention on April 5 – 11, 2016, with conditions 
 
 b)  Motion to approve the Special Event request from St. Nicholas to hold 
their NickFest on May 20th and May 21st at their location, with conditions 
(Includes Liquor License request) 
 
 c)  Motion to approve the Special Event request from Walmart to maintain 
their Garden Center at their location from date of approval until July 30, 2016, 
with conditions 

 
N. Drolet requested that item c be removed and voted separately.  
 
Motion by G. McCoskey and seconded by K. Hagarty to amend the motion by removing 
item c and approving a and b.  All ayes.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by K. Hagarty to approve the Special Event request 
from Walmart to maintain their Garden Center at their location from date of approval 
until July 30, 2016, with conditions. 
 
N. Drolet explained he has an issue about the parking spaces as Wal-Mart requested 
special consideration to have smaller spaces than what our standard requirements are 
to meet their needs.  J. Albrecht remarked that he never heard of a complaint about 
their parking spaces. J. Mouser asked T. Shekell how long they have requested to have 
the Garden Center, and he answered about ten years.  All ayes except for N. Drolet. 
Motion carried. 
 
J. Albrecht said they will meet next Monday, March 14th at 6:00 p.m. at the Public 
Safety Building. 
 
Public Works: G. McCoskey stated the next meeting is March 28th at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Public Safety Building. 
 
Public Safety:  C. Marsh said they will meet March 14th at 5:00 p.m. at the Public 
Safety Building. 
 
Finance/Administration:  Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded H. Roach to approve 
Warrant #345 in the amount of $920,685.36. 
 



City Council Meeting  Page 5 of 5 
March 7, 2016 
 

ROLL CALL: McCoskey, aye; Meile, aye; Albrecht, aye; Kueker, aye; Mouser, aye; 
Hagarty, aye; Roach, aye; Smallheer, aye; Marsh, aye; Holden, aye; Drolet, aye; 
Cozad, aye; Gerrish, aye.  Ayes – 13; Nos – 0.  All ayes. Motion carried. 
 
Parks and Environment:  R. Holden said they will meet March 14th at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Public Safety Building. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by R. Kueker to go into 
closed session on legal matters regarding threatened litigation.   
 
ROLL CALL: McCoskey, aye; Meile, aye; Albrecht, aye; Kueker, aye; Mouser, aye; 
Hagarty, aye; Roach, aye; Smallheer, aye; Marsh, aye; Holden, aye; Drolet, aye; 
Cozad, aye; Gerrish, aye.  Ayes – 13; Nos – 0.  Motion carried. Council went into 
executive session at 7:32 p.m. and returned at 7:46 p.m. 
 
Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by K. Hagarty to approve Item 3, a resolution 
authorizing the transfer of Municipal real estate located immediately to the east of 502 
West State Street. 
 
ROLL CALL: McCoskey, aye; Meile, aye; Albrecht, aye; Kueker, aye; Mouser, aye; 
Hagarty, aye; Roach, aye; Smallheer, aye; Marsh, aye; Holden, aye; Drolet, aye; 
Cozad, aye; Gerrish, aye.  Ayes – 13; Nos – 0.  All ayes. Motion carried. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by J. Albrecht and seconded by K. Hagarty to adjourn.  All 
ayes.  Motion carried.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:49 p.m. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Philip A. Goodwin 
City Clerk            
              
Minutes recorded by 
Maryanne Fair, Deputy City Clerk 
Proper notice having been duly given 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321RiederRoad.docx 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
To:   Mayor Graham and City Council   
 
From:   Ted Shekell, Planning Director 
  Walter Denton, City Administrator 

 
Date:   March 21, 2016 
 
Subject:  Pre-annexation Agreement, 10537 Rieder Road (RESOLUTION) 
 
 
List of committees that have reviewed: The Community Development Committee meeting 
scheduled for March 14th was canceled due to budget meetings.  Chairman Albrecht and City 
Administrator Denton reviewed the requested pre-annexation agreement and determined the request 
was very similar to past pre-annexation agreements on Rieder Road and recommended taking the 
SEPA straight to the council floor. 
 
Background 
The petitioners, Michael and Laurie Phillips have filed a petition to enter into an annexation agreement 
for the property located at 10537 Rieder Road, Parcel Number 04-23.0-300-007, totaling 
approximately 1.3 acres.  The parcels are currently zoned A (Agricultural District) in St. Clair County.  
The properties will be zoned A, Agricultural District upon its annexation to the City of O’Fallon.  The 
petitioner is seeking a residential water tap for the property. 
 
The agreement for 10537 Rieder Road includes a free residential water tap that was offered due to 
the property owner granting the city an easement for a 12 inch water main along Rieder Road.   
 
A public hearing will be held at the City Council meeting on Monday, March 21, 2016 at 7:00 pm.  At 
that same meeting, a resolution will be presented authorizing the Mayor to sign the annexation 
agreement. 
 
Legal Considerations: None 
 
Budget Impact:  The cost of one residential water tap: $2,750 - $3,000. 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the pre-annexation agreement for 10537 Rieder Road, Parcel Number 
04-23.0-300-007. 

 

 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Resolutions 2016\RiederRdAnnexationAgreement.docx 

 
 

CITY OF O’FALLON, ILLINOIS 
RESOLUTION 2016 - 

 

 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO  SIGN AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

WITH MICHAEL AND LAURIE PHILLIPS FOR 10537 RIEDER ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed annexation agreements have been filed with the City 
Clerk of the City of O'Fallon by Michael and Laurie Phillips for 10537 Rieder Road, 
more specifically Parcel Number 04-23.0-300-007; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed annexation agreement has been reviewed and has been 
determined to be beneficial to the public welfare; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing on such terms of the annexation agreement was 
held on March 21, 2016, before the O’Fallon City Council.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF O’FALLON, ILLINOIS THAT: 
 
1) The Mayor is authorized to sign the annexation agreements between the City of 

O'Fallon and Michael and Laurie Phillips for 10537 Rieder Road in substantially the 
form of the agreements attached to and made an integral and continuing part of this 
resolution by reference. 

 
2) The City of O’Fallon hereby agrees with all terms and conditions as indicated therein. 
 
3) This resolution shall be come effective immediately upon its adoption by the City 

Council. 
 
Resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of O'Fallon this _______ day of 
______________ 2016. 
        
     
        
Attest:       Approved: 
 
_________________________   _______________________ 
Philip A. Goodwin, City Clerk   Gary L. Graham, Mayor 
 
 
  



















C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321CoordinatedCommunications.docx 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

 To:  Mayor Graham and City Council  

From:  Eric Van Hook, Chief of Police 

Walter Denton, City Administrator 

Date:  March 21, 2016 

Subject:  Coordinated Communication Services Contract 
 
List of committees that have reviewed:  Public Safety 
 
Background:   
The City of O’Fallon entered into a Coordinated Communication Services Contract with the 
Village of Shiloh on February 4, 2013 and which expires April 30, 2016.  The City of O’Fallon and 
the Village of Shiloh wish to renew the contract under its existing terms to include a (3%) annual 
increase over the course of the (3) year agreement.  Unless this Contract is terminated by either 
party as provided herein, the conditions set forth in this Contract shall be in effect for three (3) 
years, i.e., May 1, 2016 thru April 30 2019.  
 
   
 
Legal Considerations, if any: City Attorney, Dale Funk 
 
Budget Impact:  See Attachment A 
 
Staff recommendation:  Approval.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321CoordinatedCommunications.docx 

Attachment A 
 
Cost of services provided by O’Fallon to Shiloh Fy2016/2017 thru Fy2018/2019.  The 
Village of Shiloh will make payments to the City of O’Fallon as listed below: 
 
 $106,120.80  Cost FY 2015/2016 
$109,304.42  Cost FY 2016/2017  (Cost FY 2015/2016 + 3%) 
$27,326.10  May1, 2016 
$27,326.11  August 1, 2016 
$27,326.10  November 1, 2016 
$27,326.11  February 1, 2017 
$112,583.55  Costs FY 2017/2018  (Cost FY 2016/2017+ 3%) 
$28,145.89  May 1, 2017 
$28,145.89  August 1, 2017 
$28,145.89  November 1, 2017 
$28,145.88  February 1, 2018 
$115,961.06  Costs FY 2018/2019  (Cost FY 2017/2018 + 3%) 
$28,990.26  May 1, 2018 
$28,990.27  August 1, 2018 
$28,990.26  November 1, 2018 
$28,990.27  February 1, 2019 
 



COORDINATED COMMUNICATION SERVICES CONTRACT  

 This Contract, entered into the date set forth hereafter, by and between the City of 
O’Fallon, Illinois (“Provider”) and the Village of Shiloh, Illinois (“Recipient”). 

 WHEREAS, the Provider and Recipient entered into a certain Coordinated 
Communication Services Contract on February 4, 2013 and which expires April 30, 2016, 
a copy of the Contract attached hereto and made part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the parties wish to renew the Contract, under its existing terms, except 
paragraph 6 and paragraph 11, which are replaced with the following:   

6. The Recipient shall pay the Provider the sum identified in the table below. 
The payments represent a three percent (3%) annual increase over the course 
of the three (3) year Contract. Quarterly payments shall be considered 
payment in advance for each three (3) months of service to be provided by 
the Provider, commencing May 1, 2016. Pursuant to Section 5/8-1-7 of the 
Illinois Municipal Code, the Recipient shall annually appropriate monies 
require and necessary to meet its financial obligations to the Provider as 
aforestated.   

Cost of services provided by O’Fallon to Shiloh Fy2016/2017 thru Fy2018/2019 

 $106,120.80  Cost FY 2015/2016 
$109,304.42  Cost FY 2016/2017  (Cost FY 2015/2016 + 3%) 
$27,326.10  May1, 2016 
$27,326.11  August 1, 2016 
$27,326.10  November 1, 2016 
$27,326.11  February 1, 2017 
$112,583.55  Costs FY 2017/2018  (Cost FY 2016/2017+ 3%) 
$28,145.89  May 1, 2017 
$28,145.89  August 1, 2017 
$28,145.89  November 1, 2017 
$28,145.88  February 1, 2018 
$115,961.06  Costs FY 2018/2019  (Cost FY 2017/2018 + 3%) 
$28,990.26  May 1, 2018 
$28,990.27  August 1, 2018 
$28,990.26  November 1, 2018 
$28,990.27  February 1, 2019 

 

 11. Unless this Contract is terminated by either party as provided herein, the 
conditions set forth in this Contract shall be in effect for three (3) years, i.e., 
May 1, 2016 thru April 30 2019.  



 

This Contract shall expire on April 30, 2019. 

 

CITY OF O’FALLON    VILLAGE OF SHILOH 

 

By: ______________________________ By: _____________________________ 
        Mayor                              Date          Mayor                            Date 

 

 ATTST:      ATTST: 

 

 

_____________________________      _______________________________ 
              City Clerk                Date                  City Clerk                        Date 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321SRO OTHS.docx 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

 To:  Mayor Graham and City Council  

From:  Eric Van Hook, Chief of Police 

Walter Denton, City Administrator 

Date:  March 21, 2016 

Subject:  School Resource Officer Program Contract 
 
List of committees that have reviewed:  Public Safety 
 
Background:   
The City of O’Fallon maintains its own Police Department including properly trained and qualified 
School Resource Officers.  The Board of Education of O’Fallon Township High School District 
203 desires to establish a School Resource Officer Program (“SRO Program”) as a joint 
cooperative effort with the City of O’Fallon for both the School District’s Smiley Street Campus 
and Milburn School Road Campus.  The Board of Education of the O’Fallon Township High 
School District 203 will fund 100% of the officer’s salary/benefits during times that school is in 
session, (9) months. 
 
   
 
Legal Considerations, if any: City Attorney, Dale Funk 
 
Budget Impact:  See Attachment A 
 
Staff recommendation:  Approval.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321SRO OTHS.docx 

 
 

 

Wages $31.41/hr x 2080 hrs. $65,332.80

Health $656.53 x 26 + $2000 $19,069.78

Dental $42.75 x 26 (PPO) $1,111.50

Vision $8.54 x 26 $222.04

Life $5.03 x 12 $60.36

Federal tacurrent rate = 7.65% $4,997.96

Work Com.0654 x pay $4,272.77

Pension, e28% x tax reduced pay $18,293.18
Standard Hourly Cost

TOTAL FOR POSITION $113,360.39 /2080 $54.50

DISTRICT 203 COMPENSATION: $85,020.29 $23.09 per hour for the benefits portion

$28,340.10

Wages $32.32/hr x 2080 hrs. $67,225.60 Step 2, 2016 contract schedule

Health $722.18 x 26 + $2000 $20,776.68

Dental $47.02 x 26 (PPO) $1,222.52

Vision $9.39 x 26 $244.14

Life $5.53 x 12 $66.36

Federal tacurrent rate = 7.65% $5,142.76

Work Com.0654 x pay $4,396.55

Pension, e28% x tax reduced pay $18,823.17
Standard Hourly Cost

TOTAL FOR POSITION $117,897.78 /2080 $56.68

DISTRICT 203 COMPENSATION: $88,423.34 $24.36 per hour for the benefits portion

$29,474.45City of O'Fallon Cost:

ATTACHMENT A

2080 annual hour police position with Bachelor after probation - Year 2

MAY 1, 2015 THRU MAY 1, 2016

2080 annual hour police position with Bachelor after probation - Year 2

MAY 1, 2016 THRU MAY 1, 2017

SALARY COMPENSATION CHART

City of O'Fallon Cost:































CITY OF O’FALLON, ILLINOIS 
RESOLUTION 2016 -   

 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE BOARD OF 
EDUCATION OF O’FALLON TOWNSHIP HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 203 

THAT ALLOWS THE CITY TO ESTABLISH A SCHOOL RESOURCE 
OFFICER PROGRAM (“SRO PROGRAM”) AS A JOINT COOPERATIVE 

EFFORT FOR BOTH THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S SMILEY STREET CAMPUS 
AND MILBURN SCHOOL ROAD CAMPUS 

 
 

WHEREAS, The City of O'Fallon and the Board of Education of O’Fallon Township High 
School District No. 203, are authorized and empowered by Article VII, Section 10 of the Constitution of 
the State of Illinois and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS220/1 et. seq., to enter into 
governmental agreements for any purpose, not prohibited by law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of O’Fallon maintains its own Police Department (“Police Department”) 

including properly trained and qualified School Resource Officers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the School District desires to have the services of a School Resource Officer; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to establish a School Resource Officer Program (“SRO Program”) 

as a joint cooperative effort for both the School District’s Smiley Street Campus and Milburn School Road 
Campus. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF O’FALLON, ST. CLAIR COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
That the City of O’Fallon authorizes the Mayor to enter into an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the Board of Education of O’Fallon Township High School District 203 
that allows the City to establish a School Resource Officer Program (“SRO Program”) as 
a joint cooperative effort for both the School District’s Smiley Street Campus and 
Milburn School Road Campus. 
 
Passed and approved this 21st day of March 2016. 

ATTEST:      Approved: 
 

 
 
 
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Philip A. Goodwin, City Clerk   Gary L. Graham, Mayor 
 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321ITI.docx 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

 To:  Mayor Graham and City Council  

From:  Eric Van Hook, Chief of Police 

Walter Denton, City Administrator 

Date:  March 21, 2016 

Subject:  Information Technologies, INC. (ITI) Contract 
 
List of committees that have reviewed:  Public Safety 
 
Background:   
The O’Fallon Police Department is currently (1) of (8) PSAP’s in St. Clair County that provides 9-
1-1 Dispatch Service to our residents.  As the result of a State mandated consolidation the City of 
O’Fallon is moving forward to consolidate communication centers with the City of Fairview 
Heights, IL.  Part of the consolidation will require both police agencies to operate on the same 
CAD (Computer Aided Dispatch) and RMS (Records Management System).  Currently the City 
of Fairview Heights uses ITI for CAD and RMS, and the City of O’Fallon uses New World 
Systems for CAD and RMS.  The City of O’Fallon’s IT Coordinator, Dan Gentry, assisted us in 
evaluating the two products.  After carefully reviewing cost, reliability and functionality of the ITI 
and New World Systems, the O’Fallon Police Department is requesting to enter into an 
agreement with ITI for CAD, RMS, JMS and Mobile services.   
   
 
Legal Considerations, if any: None 
 
Budget Impact:  See Attachment A 
 
Staff recommendation:  Approval.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321ITI.docx 

Attachment A 
 

The savings projection is based on a four year comparison (2017-2020) as provided by New 
World and ITI.  
 

 Software Licensing – approximately $400,000 in software savings by switching to ITI. 
 

 Hardware Costs – as a hosted solution there are no local server requirements for 
ITI.  This would save approximately $23,000 in depreciation and OS costs related to 
existing servers.  Additionally, Aegis Version 11 will require additional server 
resources.  We project an additional $18,000 related to new server and OS purchases. 

 
 Upgrades & Implementation – as a hosted solution ITI covers upgrades as part of the 

hosting subscription but will include initial implementation, training and data conversion 
costs.  We expect a net savings of approximately $140,000 in upgrade and 
implementation costs. 
 

Training Component of Upgrade & Implementation – the New World quote for upgrade to 
Version 11 didn’t break out all of the training costs so any training savings are included in the 
$140,000 mentioned above. However, New World did indicate that the Version 11 upgrade 
would require 12 travel days with $24,000 in costs related to implementation and training.  ITI has 
indicated that the training component of implementation will cost approximately $12,000.  There 
are additional long term savings opportunities related to training since ITI is a local company. 



 

 
 
 
 
 

To:  O'FALLON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
285 NORTH SEVEN HILLS ROAD 
O'FALLON, IL 62269 

Quotation Number:  Q201610459 
Date:   03/09/2016 

Page: 1 of 7 

 
 

Project Description: HOSTED SERVICE - CAD, RMS, JMS AND 
MOBILE 

For Information, Contact: Drew Steward 

 

Item Notes Lic / Qty Monthly Fee  One-Time Costs 

Hosted Service (1) 1 227.00 0.00 

Hosted Service - Additional LAN Workstation (2) 35 1,330.00 0.00 

Hosted Service - Mobile Workstation (3) 18 945.00 0.00 

Hosted Service - Computer Aided Dispatch (single station)   1 250.00 0.00 

Hosted Service - Additional CAD Workstation   7 1,050.00 0.00 

Hosted Service - Dispatch Monitor (10 Concurrent Licenses) (4) 1 50.00 0.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted Service (5) 1 0.00 199.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted LAN Workstation (6) 35 0.00 1,750.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted CAD Workstation   8 0.00 792.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted Mobile Workstation (7) 18 0.00 1,792.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted Regional Data Sharing (8) 1 0.00 250.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted NCIC Interface (9) 1 0.00 250.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted E911 Interface   1 0.00 250.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted Dispatch Monitor (10) 1 0.00 99.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted Livescan Interface  1 0.00 250.00 

Services - Installation / Setup of Hosted IL Traffic Crash Report (11) 1 0.00 499.00 

Enterprise Framework (12) 1 0.00 0.00 

Regional Data Sharing (13) 1 0.00 0.00 

Interface, NCIC IL LEADS (14) 1 105.00 0.00 

Personnel Management   1 0.00 0.00 

Computer Aided Dispatch   1 0.00 0.00 

Interface, E911 (15) 1 105.00 0.00 

Interface, ProQA Platinum Level for CAD (16) 1 105.00 0.00 

Law Enforcement Records Management   1 0.00 0.00 

Interface, IL Traffic Crash Report (electronic submission) (17) 1 175.00 0.00 

Interface, Livescan – Identix TouchPrint (18) 1 75.00  

Racial Profiling, IL DOT - TSDS (19) 1 105.00 0.00 

Public Safety Software 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. Quotation

This quotation is based on the following agency profile: 
Users: 62 
Officers: 44 
Jail Beds: 0 



Sales: 800.814.4843 
Local: 314.997.5336 

10430 Baur Boulevard 
St. Louis, Missouri 63132 

Fax: 314.997.5342 
www.itiusa.com 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
Quotation Number: Q201610459 

Date:  03/09/2016 
Page 2 of 7  

 

Jail Management   1 150.00 0.00 

Training - Sys Admin at ITI (per day) (20) 5 0.00 4,875.00 

Services - Configuration Assistance (21) 2 0.00 6,400.00 

Training - Custom Class On-Site (22) 5 0.00  10,250.00 

This quotation is valid through 04/30/2016 and is subject to the terms, 
conditions, and requirements below. 

 

One-Time Cost 

Sales Tax 

Shipping & Handling 

27,646.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Total One-Time Costs 27,646.00

Monthly Hosted Cost 4,672.00 

 

TOTAL DUE WITH ORDER (12 Months Service plus One-Time Costs) 83,710.00 

HOSTED SERVICE: YEAR 2 57,732.00 

HOSTED SERVICE: YEAR 3 59,436.00 
 

 

Notes: 

(1) This service includes hosting the ITI modules listed on this quotation.  The service includes ITI's client software on one LAN workstation 
(provided by agency) at the agency site. 

(2) This provides additional licenses thirty-five (35) for use of the software on agency provided LAN workstations. 

(3) This provides additional licenses eighteen (18) for use of the software on agency provided mobile workstations.   

(4) Provides ten (10) concurrent licenses of Dispatch Monitor for access via web. 

(5) Includes installation and setup of first LAN workstation. 

Includes setup and configuration of all subscribed modules. ITI will coordinate with your Site Administrator to obtain necessary 
information to complete the configuration. In addition, ITI will perform the following: 

* Remote software installation on each subscribed workstation. 

ITI reserves the right to limit services related to the development of custom reports to ten hours per year. 

Agency will be responsible for completing configuration worksheets (Excel files) prior to going on-line, including, but not limited to: 

* Users List 
* Street List 
* Charge Code List 

(6) Includes remote setup of ITI's client applications on thirty-five (35) Local Area Network (LAN) workstations.  Your Site Administrator 
will need to provide ITI remote access to complete this installation. 

(7) Includes remote setup of ITI's client applications on eighteen (18) mobile workstations.  Your Site Administrator will need to provide ITI 
remote access to complete this installation.  For the purposes of this setup, the mobile workstations should be connected to the 
internet inside your office.  Installation over a wireless network is not supported. 

(8) ITI will install the Regional Data Sharing software and assist your Site Administrator with configuration of Sharing Agreements. 

(9) This includes remote installation and configuration of ITI's NCIC interface. 

(10) Includes setup of ITI's Hosted Dispatch Monitor on ITI provided web server.  Access will be via ITI supplied URL. 

(11) ITI will install and configure the Illinois Crash Report with the assistance of your System Administrator. 

(12) Requires Microsoft SQL Client Access License for each workstation. ITI provides these licenses with Hosted Service.  The licenses 
remain the property of ITI. 

(13) Hosted Service to provide Regional Data Sharing through ITI's Records Management Software.  This will provide the capability 
to share RMS data, of your choosing, with other agencies who have ITI's Enterprise Records Management and Regional Data 
Sharing. 

   



Sales: 800.814.4843 
Local: 314.997.5336 

10430 Baur Boulevard 
St. Louis, Missouri 63132 

Fax: 314.997.5342 
www.itiusa.com 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
Quotation Number: Q201610459 

Date:  03/09/2016 
Page 3 of 7  

 

(14) This interface is for inquiries only. Only certain inquiries are supported. Contact ITI for more details. 

A separate, stand-alone PC is required to run this interface software.  The workstation will also require a Microsoft SQL Client Access 
License. 

NCIC Interface PC Requirements: 

 Dedicated PC meeting ITI's minimum workstation requirements (see www.itiusa.com/pdf/hardwarerequirements.pdf) 
 Internet access. 
 LAN connectivity with access to the Server where the ITI software is installed. 
 WAN connectivity to the state system. 

The state will need to be involved to allow access from your interface PC to the State system.  ITI will assist your agency with this 
process but ultimately it is the agency's responsibility to see that this connectivity is established. 

 Before the NCIC interface can be installed, your agency will need to request terminal IDs from the state to be used with the 
NCIC interface.  The terminal IDs currently used at your NCIC terminals cannot be used.  New terminal IDs that will be used 
solely by the interface must be requested.  Your agency will need one terminal ID per workstation authorized to make inquiries 
through the interface.  This includes each CAD workstation, station based workstation and mobile workstation that will make 
inquiries to the NCIC interface.  ITI can assist you in determining how many terminal IDs you need to request.  Please contact 
ITI if you need additional information or assistance in requesting terminal IDs from your state.  IT IS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY 
TO OBTAIN THESE TERMINAL IDs.  ITI CANNOT REQUEST THESE TERMINAL IDs FOR YOU AS THE STATE REQUIRES 
THIS REQUEST COME FROM YOUR AGENCY.  TERMINAL IDs MUST BE REQUESTED WELL IN ADVANCE OF THEIR 
NEED.  CONTACT YOUR STATE NCIC COORDINATOR FOR REQUIREMENTS. 

Should any of these requirements above not be met at the time of your onsite installation, ITI can install and test your interface 
remotely after your on-site installation has occurred. 

(15) A separate, stand-alone PC is required to run this interface software and is not provided by ITI.  The workstation will also require a 
Microsoft SQL Client Access License. 

A CAD port is required on your E911 system.  ITI does not provide this port.  E911 Interface PC Requirements: 

 PC must meet ITI's current minimum specifications found at www.itiusa.com/pdf/hardwarerequirements.pdf 
 LAN connectivity with access to the Server where the ITI software is installed. 
 Serial Port. 
 Serial cable connected between the E911 CAD port and the E911 Interface PC. 

If these requirements have not been met at the time of ITI's on-site installation, ITI will perform this setup remotely, and will require 
agency assistance to make the proper connections and to "capture" data for E911 configuration by ITI. 

(16) Assists CAD users with utilization of Priority Dispatch's ProQA Paramount (Medical) product.  The interface is developed according 
to the requirements for a Platinum level certification as defined in the ProQA CAD Certification Checklist v2.4 dated 3/29/2012. 

(17) This interface provides the ability to enter and print accident reports through the ITI Public Safety Software that follows the state 
specification for accident reporting.  The following reports are available to be printed: 

IL Traffic Crash Report  
Driver Information Exchange  
IL Motorist Report 

Accident reports may be entered directly through an Offense / Incident report or independently in an accident specific module.  The 
data entry form follows the printed state report to expedite the data entry process.  When the report is complete and ready to 
submit, the user can validate the report and then select to submit the report to IDOT electronically.  Once a report has been 
successfully submitted and approved by IDOT, a Control Number will be pushed down from the state and added to the report 
automatically. 

This interface integrates with the Query Report Writer module allowing for numerous accident statistics to be generated as well. 

ITI’s electronic crash reporting software has been certified by the State of Illinois.  However, the State of Illinois requires your agency 
to electronically submit 20 sample crash reports, of varying nature, in order to pass agency certification prior to the electronic 
transmission of actual crash reports.  Your agency is responsible for entering these sample reports in your system and coordinating 
with the State of 

Illinois as required in order to receive certification.  This may include multiple submissions in order to meet all State requirements 
for completeness and accuracy.  ITI is not responsible for performing or coordinating this process, but will be available to answer 
questions related to the software. 

(18) This interface may require a corresponding interface from the Livescan manufacturer.  ITI does not provide the manufacturers’ 
interface. 

   



Sales: 800.814.4843 
Local: 314.997.5336 

10430 Baur Boulevard 
St. Louis, Missouri 63132 

Fax: 314.997.5342 
www.itiusa.com 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
Quotation Number: Q201610459 

Date:  03/09/2016 
Page 4 of 7  

 

(19) This Racial Profile form, Illinois Department of Transportation – Traffic Stop Data Sheet (Form TS-2581, Rev. 8/29/11), is available in 
the RMS as part of an Offense/Incident report, a summons or as a standalone report.  A single record may also be printed.  In 
addition, a delimited text file containing multiple records can be produced from the RMS – Admin Reports module.  If configured to 
validate the reports, the validations will be performed when the report is saved. 

(20) System Administration training at ITI's St. Louis offices provides training for up to two (2) Agency designated System Administrators in 
a single training session.  Additional students may attend at additional cost. 

The training will be conducted as follows:  

Days 1 and 2  - CAD Training 
Days 3 and 4  - RMS Training  
Day 5  - JMS Training 

ITI strongly recommends that your agency take advantage of ITI's System Administrator training, prior to implementing our software.  
Only ITI trained System Administrators are eligible to receive technical support from ITI.  In the event that your agency does not 
attend training or fails to maintain an ITI trained System Administrator, technical support services will be interrupted. 

Training fees are non-refundable.  Cancellations made with more than 72 hours notice will be eligible for rescheduled training.  
Note: This is for the entire class, and not an individual student.  Cancellations made with less than 72 hours will result in forfeiture 
of training and/or fees. 

Please understand, these terms are necessary due to the scheduling constraints for classrooms and instructors.  ITI cannot be 
responsible for scheduling problems outside of our control, such as illness, travel delays, etc. which can cause you to miss 
scheduled training. 

ITI provides lunch with these classes.  All travel, lodging and other meal expenses are the responsibility of the agency. 

(21) ITI will remotely review the configuration of your software modules as completed by your System Administrator(s).  ITI will work with 
your System Administrator(s) to fine tune the configuration, in preparation for user training and start-up. 

(22) An ITI Product Specialist will conduct ten (10), four-hour user training classes at the O'Fallon, IL Department of Public Safety building 
during five (5) consecutive days.  The first class will start at 0800 and conclude at 1200 while the second class will start at 1300 
and conclude at 1700.  Three (3) of the classes will cover the use of the CAD module.  The Product Specialist will conduct five (5), 
4-hour training classes on the use of RMS.  The final classes will consist of two (2), 4 hour classes on the use of JMS. 

ITI highly recommends that someone from the agency that has policy making authority attend each training session to answer 
questions on how the department will utilize the software. 

 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
ALL HARDWARE (PRINTERS, DRIVER'S LICENSE SCANNERS, PAPER PRODUCTS, ETC.) AND MICROSOFT SQL LICENSE SALES 
ARE FINAL, AND NO RETURNS WILL BE ACCEPTED. 
 
TERM OF AGREEMENT: 
 
This Agreement is for a term of thirty-six (36) months from the date of Acceptance by Information Technologies, Inc. (ITI). 
 
ITI’s Hosted Service requires payment in advance.  Invoicing is on an annual basis, with each twelve month period paid in advance.  Agency 
will have the right to cancel this service by simply not making payment for additional twelve month periods of service beyond the initial term 
of this Agreement.  To avoid interruption in service, payment for additional periods must be received by ITI prior to the expiration date of the 
previous period.  Pre-paid periods of service are not subject to refund. 
 
ITI will not be responsible for Agency’s inability to utilize the software or access data in the event of non-payment and Agency agrees to 
hold ITI harmless in this event.  All services will cease upon completion of any pre-paid service period. 
 
ITI retains the right to cancel this service, or to not offer service after the term of this Agreement.  Pricing and Terms and Conditions are 
subject to change after the initial term of the Agreement.  
 

SOFTWARE SUPPORT: 
 
Your agency must designate at least one "Site Administrator" who will be responsible for working with ITI on configuration and support 
issues.  Up to two Site Administrators can be designated.  The Site Administrator(s) must have attended ITI's web based training on 
all modules included in your Hosted Services subscription. 
 
Only Site Administrators are eligible to receive telephone technical support.  Support is available Monday through Friday (excluding 
holidays), 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM central time. 
 



Sales: 800.814.4843 
Local: 314.997.5336 

10430 Baur Boulevard 
St. Louis, Missouri 63132 

Fax: 314.997.5342 
www.itiusa.com 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
Quotation Number: Q201610459 

Date:  03/09/2016 
Page 5 of 7  

 

After hours telephone technical support is available (24x7) on a per-incident basis at ITI's current After Hours support fee (currently           
$ 75.00).  This incident based fee will be charged, net 30 days, regardless of the time required.  By requesting After Hours support, 
Agency agrees to make payment for services provided.  Agency further agrees that ITI may suspend service and/or support in the event 
of any unpaid After Hours support charges. 
 
For support purposes, ITI utilizes software web connectivity tools to connect to the client agency workstation(s).  Client agency is 
responsible for ensuring that ITI has the proper connectivity and authentication to utilize these tools.  A successful connectivity test will be 
required prior to scheduling software installation or other services.  Client agency is responsible for all appropriate security measures 
including, but not limited to, an internet firewall. 
 
ITI reserves the right to refuse support to an agency that is more than two releases behind and refuses to apply updates.  In the event of 
such action, no refund of un-used periods of service will be made.  ITI will work with the agency on a mutually-agreeable update 
schedule to be performed during ITI’s normal business hours. 
 
SOFTWARE LICENSING: 
 
ITI's Hosted Service includes a workstation license for the number of workstations subscribed.  As a result of subscribing to ITI's Hosted 
Service, Agency WILL NOT be acquiring any license to use the provided software beyond the term of this Agreement and WILL NOT 
ACQUIRE ANY OWNERSHIP of any of the software provided. 
 
BROADBAND CONNECTION REQUIRED: 
 
ITI's Hosted Service requires a broadband internet connection acceptable to ITI.  Prior to installation, ITI will need remote access to test 
your connection for verification of broadband speed and connection integrity. 
 
DATA SECURITY: 
 
ITI utilizes state-of-the-art technologies to protect your data as it is communicated between your PCs and our data center.  These 
measures include the use of rolling connections with public / private key exchanges for 256 bit data encryption.  Our encryption utilizes 
Advanced Encryption Standard (AES).  AES is the cryptography standard adopted by the U.S. Government and is in use worldwide. 
 
Access to the agency’s database is only through the ITI Public Safety Software.  Direct access through Microsoft SQL Server 
Management Studio, third party tools or other applications is not allowed. 
 
ITI does not provide hardware, local area network, cabling, firewall or internet routing services, which are the responsibility of the 
subscribing agency.  ITI's offering is limited to the use of our software along with our services to setup and support our software. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE: 
 
Agency agrees that this service is a low cost alternative to purchasing, installing, setting up and maintaining an in-house server and 
related software.  As such, Agency agrees that some periods of outage, without notice, will occur due to circumstances beyond ITI’s 
control (power, internet connectivity, hardware failure, etc.).  ITI does not guarantee uninterrupted service.  In the event of an outage or 
un-planned event at the hosting site, use of the software will be interrupted.  Agency is encouraged to maintain paper or electronic 
(PDF) copies of all reports and agrees to hold ITI harmless in all circumstances involving loss of use of the software.  In the event of an 
outage at the hosting site lasting more than 72 consecutive hours, ITI will offer a pro-rated discount on the next period of purchased 
service. 
 
All Agency workstations using ITI’s software must meet ITI’s minimum workstation requirements published at 
http://www.itiusa.com/pdf/HardwareRequirements.pdf and must be protected with an anti-virus software application (not provided by ITI) that 
is under a maintenance agreement to receive the most current software and pattern updates from the Agency’s chosen vendor.  ITI shall 
have the right to immediately deny access, without prior notice, to any workstation found to be inadequately protected or currently infected 
with any software virus, worm, spyware or similar malware.  In this event, Agency will be responsible for the removal / repair of the 
workstation and will receive no credit for lost periods of service.  
 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR HARDWARE / OPERATING SYSTEM: 
 
ITI is not responsible for hardware or operating system software on Agency’s PCs. ITI's responsibility is for ITI software and hosting 
services only.  No hardware is included.  Agency is responsible for providing broadband internet connectivity, including router 
configuration, as deemed necessary by ITI for the proper operation of the software. 
 
SOFTWARE UPDATES / UPGRADES: 
 
As part of this service, ITI will perform updates / upgrades to the ITI software.  ITI will have the right to increase the minimum PC 
requirements as needed to support future enhancements to the software.  



Sales: 800.814.4843 
Local: 314.997.5336 

10430 Baur Boulevard 
St. Louis, Missouri 63132 

Fax: 314.997.5342 
www.itiusa.com 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
Quotation Number: Q201610459 

Date:  03/09/2016 
Page 6 of 7  

 

CANCELLATION / TERMINATION: 
 
Upon cancellation or termination, Agency shall remove all ITI software from their workstation(s).  

ACCESS TO DATA AFTER CANCELLATION / TERMINATION: 

Upon request, and for a period of 30 days after cancellation / termination of service, Agency may request an electronic copy of their data 
(Database Archive) by paying a Database Archive fee of $ 399.00.  ITI will provide the archive on electronic or magnetic media in 
Microsoft SQL Server backup form.  After this 30 day period, all Agency data will be purged from ITI’s system and will not be 
recoverable. 
Note: SQL Server backup form includes copies of the database tables and NOT printable data that can be utilized through conventional 
means such as a spreadsheet or word processor.  A database conversion by a qualified programmer or database administrator would be 
necessary to import this data into other software.  These services are not provided or available from ITI. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT: 
 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with regard to the subject matter hereof and may not be modified, amended 
or terminated except by written agreement, specifically referencing this Agreement, and signed by both parties hereto. 
 
Agency acknowledges and agrees that any purchase order issued by Agency, in accordance with this agreement, is intended only to 
establish payment authority for Agency's internal accounting purposes.  No purchase order shall be considered to be a counteroffer, 
amendment, modification, or other revision to the terms of this Agreement.  No term or condition included in Agency's purchase order will 
have any force or effect. 
 
PRODUCTS NOT INCLUDED: 
 
ITI's product offering is limited to those ITI software modules and third-party products specifically listed in this proposal.  Additional 
products or interfaces not specifically listed in this proposal are not included. 
 
SERVICES NOT INCLUDED: 
 
With the exception of those specified herein, this proposal does not include services such as data conversion, software installation, 
training, configuration, configuration review, or startup assistance, including on-site services. 
 
In the event that any Federal, State, County or Municipal agency or body requires on-site activities to certify software for use by your 
Agency, your Agency will be responsible for paying actual travel, lodging, meals and related expenses for ITI personnel involved in said 
certification. 
 
 
INTERFACE, E911: 
 
YOUR AGENCY AGREES TO THE FOLLOWING EACH TIME THE ITI E911 INTERFACE IS USED: 

 
A. That the ITI software is being provided only for the use of transferring data from emergency equipment to nonessential systems.  

The information retrieved by the ITI software is only to be used for archival data purposes. 
 
B. That live caller information on the E911 system will be used for all activities related to dispatch, emergency information, 

location,  identification or use in your life saving or related activities. 

C. That you will notify ITI within 24 hours of any interface or ITI software defect, failure or improper operation. 

EXTERNAL ACCESS VIA WEB BROWSER: 

Unless notified in writing to not do so, ITI will make available, at no additional cost, a ten (10) concurrent user license of our Web Access 
software which includes limited read-only access to your data, plus read/write access to ITI email, via a web based application (ITI Web 
Access) that utilizes SSL encryption.  Control over which Agency employees can access this application is available to Agency via 
software configuration.  In the event that ITI Web Access is enabled, Agency acknowledges the inherent security risks with web based 
applications.  ITI recommends stringent policies and procedures be adopted and enforced by Agency for external access, including 
password strength, regular password changes and related issues.   

 
  



Sales: 800.814.4843 
Local: 314.997.5336 

10430 Baur Boulevard 
St. Louis, Missouri 63132 

Fax: 314.997.5342 
www.itiusa.com 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
Quotation Number: Q201610459 

Date:  03/09/2016 
Page 7 of 7  

 

ACCEPTANCE – City of O’Fallon, Illinois: 

By signing below, and making payment for services as outlined herein, the City of O’Fallon, Illinois accepts this proposal and enters into 
this Agreement with Information Technologies, Inc.  I acknowledge that I have the legal right to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 
the City. 
 
City of O’Fallon, Illinois 
 

Signature:    
 

Name (printed):     
 

Title:    
 

Date:    

 
 
ACCEPTANCE – Information Technologies, Inc.: 

By signing below, Information Technologies, Inc. enters into this Agreement.  I acknowledge that I have the legal right to enter into this 
Agreement on behalf of the Information Technologies, Inc. 

 
Information Technologies, Inc. 
 

Signature:    
 

Name (printed):     
 

Title:   
 

Date:    

 
 



Notes:

(1)  SCOPE OF WORK

ITI will convert the RMS and CAD records from the O’Fallon New World database (source) into the ITI Enterprise Public Safety RMS /
CAD database.

Case reports from the source database will be converted into the ITI RMS software as Offense/Incident reports. The converted
Offense/Incident reports will include the following data.

Offense/Incident Report
•  Case Number
•  Offense
•  Location of the Incident
•  Report Date
•  Incident From/To Dates
•  Associated Officers
•  Subjects
    o  Role Type
    o  Name
    o  DOB
    o  SSN
    o  Age
    o  Address
    o  Phone Number
•  Property
•  Vehicle

ITI will also convert accident records into the ITI RMS Generic Accident module.  The converted accident reports will contain the following
data.

Accident Report (generic)
•  Vehicles
•  Subjects
    o  Address
    o  Phone Number
•  Witnesses
    o  Address
    o  Phone Number

Warrant records will be converted from the source into the ITI RMS database.  The converted warrants will contain the following data.

Warrant
•  Warrant Number
•  Type
•  Issued Date/Time
•  Officer
•  Offense
•  Subject
    o  Address
    o  Phone
•  Status
    o  Status records from the source DB will be converted into the notes for the ITI warrant.
•  Activity
    o Service activity will be converted from the source DB as a service attempt in the ITI database where possible. Where this is not
possible the activity will be converted into the notes of the ITI warrant.

Ticket/Citation records will also be converted from the source database into the ITI Summons module.  It appears that the source system
allowed for more than one offense to be linked to a single ticket/citation.   In this situation, an ITI Summons will be created for each
offense.  The following data from the source ticket/citation will be converted.

Ticket/Citation
•  Ticket Number
•  Date/Time
•  Location
•  Charge
•  Person
    o  Address
    o  Phone
•  Vehicle

For all persons converted an attempt will be made to match the records with existing person records in the database in order to create an
ITI master name repository.

CAD data from the source database will be converted into the ITI CAD module.  The following data will be considered during the CAD
conversion.

Calls For Service
•  Events
•  Activity Log
•  Units
•  Officers
•  Location
•  Person
•  Vehicle
•  Call For Service Number
•  Incident Number
•  Call Type
•  Open Date/Time
•  Close Date/Time
•  Arrive Date/Time
•  Dispatch Date/Time

Alerts will also be converted into the ITI database.  The following alert fields will be converted:

Alert
•  Alert Type
•  Effective Date
•  Expiration Date
•  Description

ITI will also import external files into its database.  These files are a variety of file types (MS Word, PDF, BMP, JPG, etc.) and will need to
be located by the client.  After all RMS/CAD records have been converted, the external files will be processed to see if there is a reference
to a RMS/CAD record. If a reference is found, a file will be imported into the ITI RMS/CAD database as an associated file attachment. If
the reference points to an area where the ITI software does not allow file attachments then a standalone file attachment record will be
created. A reference to that file attachment record created will be inserted into the notes of the associated report. If a file in the reference
table cannot be found, information about that missing file will be included in a conversion log.

Much of the data in the O’Fallon legacy database is stored as codes. ITI and O’Fallon will need to work together to determine the meaning
of these codes during the course of the data conversion.  Any data being converted from the O’Fallon system that does not directly map to
a value in the ITI RMS/CAD database will be converted as notes.  In order to accurately convert the data, ITI will require a minimum of ten
(10) sample reports containing data from the areas listed above.

The data conversion will be authored at ITI's offices and will remain the property of ITI.  Upon completion of the initial engineering work, ITI
will provide your agency with a test conversion for review.  You will have thirty (30) calendar days (Initial Review Period) to identify any
issues, including mis-mapped fields or missing data.  Upon receipt of all reported issues within the Initial Review Period, ITI will correct any
deficiencies within the Scope of Work defined in our quotation, and will provide an additional test conversion with a ten (10) calendar day
review period (Subsequent Review Period).  ITI will correct any deficiencies reported within the Subsequent Review Period that were part
of those issues originally reported.  Subsequent test conversions will contain a sub-set of the full conversion as necessary to demonstrate
that the necessary corrections have been made.  This process will repeat until all originally reported deficiencies, within the Scope of
Work, have been corrected.

In the event that no response is received within any Review Period, the subject test conversion will be accepted "as is", any remaining
balance will be billed and the conversion will be available to be performed on the live database.

Please understand that ITI cannot re-visit a data conversion project for issues identified beyond the defined Review Period(s) without
additional charges.  Data conversions are time intensive and each one is unique.  Once our engineering personnel are finished and
reassigned to other projects, it takes a significant effort to re-visit a closed project.   For this reason, it is imperative that you spend the time
necessary to vigorously evaluate the test conversion and provide comments within the specified Review Period(s).

The actual data conversion will be performed remotely by ITI technicians on your server or ITI’s Hosted server, whichever may apply.  In
the event that your agency is providing the server, remote access will need to be provided to ITI.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
ITI’S PAYMENT TERMS:

ITI requires a 50% deposit to schedule the development of the conversion utility.  The remaining 50% will be invoiced NET thirty (30) days
upon acceptance of the test conversion.

ALL HARDWARE (PRINTERS, DRIVER'S LICENSE SCANNERS, PAPER PRODUCTS, ETC.) AND MICROSOFT SQL LICENSE SALES
ARE FINAL AND NO RETURNS WILL BE ACCEPTED.

AUTHORIZED PURCHASE:

With an order, ITI may require a copy of the city ordinance or county resolution that authorizes the agency to acquire ITI's products and
services.   Usually, this only involves a copy of the meeting minutes, of your governing body, where ITI's proposal was accepted.

Agency acknowledges and agrees that any purchase order issued by Agency, in accordance with this quotation, is intended only to
establish payment authority for Agency's internal accounting purposes.  No purchase order shall be considered to be a counteroffer,
amendment, modification, or other revision to these Terms and Conditions.

ITI will have the right to deactivate any software not paid for in accordance with the payment terms of this quotation.  In the event of such
deactivation, client shall have no recourse against Information Technologies, Inc. for their inability to use said software.

SOFTWARE TELEPHONE TECHNICAL SUPPORT (ANNUAL CONTRACT SUPPORT):

Customer agrees to pay Annual Support for a period of twelve (12) months on a pre-paid basis.  Year one begins on the purchase date of
the software.  ITI will not be responsible for providing support in the event that client does not purchase annual support contracts from ITI
in years subsequent to year one.  Year two and subsequent years are invoiced prior to the purchase anniversary date at ITI's prevailing
support prices.

SOFTWARE UPDATES:

ITI periodically produces software updates, which are made available to all registered agencies who are currently on annual support.
Software updates do not include upgrades, which are considered new products.  Upgrades may include changes in back-end database,
supported operating system(s) or related major features.

SOFTWARE SUPPORT:

In order to provide support and software updates, ITI requires a high-speed (broadband) internet connection at the client agency.  In the
event the agency does not provide the required high-speed internet connection, software support and updates will not be available.

System Administrators who have completed ITI System Administration training are eligible to receive telephone technical support.  Support
is available Monday through Friday (excluding holidays), 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM central time.

After hours telephone technical support is available on a per-incident basis.  At the time of this quotation the fees are $75.00 per-incident
(Agencies within the United States) and $100.00 per-incident (Agencies outside the United States), regardless of the time required.
Clients have the opportunity to identify personnel who are authorized to request after hours telephone technical support.

For support purposes, ITI utilizes software web connectivity tools to connect to the client agency server(s) or workstation(s).  Client agency
is responsible for ensuring that ITI has the proper connectivity and authentication to utilize these tools.  A successful connectivity test will
be required prior to scheduling software installation or other services.  Client agency is responsible for all appropriate security measures
including, but not limited to, an internet firewall.

Software telephone technical support does not include software re-installation and/or server migration associated with infrastructure
changes.  These services are outside of ITI's standard software telephone technical support.  ITI can provide dedicated help for these
needs at additional cost.

ITI reserves the right to refuse support to an agency that is more than two releases behind and refuses to apply updates.  In the event of
such action, no refund of un-used portions of service will be made.  ITI will work with the agency on a mutually-agreeable update schedule
to be performed during ITI’s normal business hours.

SOFTWARE LICENSING:

The standard ITI shrink-wrap software license agreement shall apply from the date of software shipment.

With the exception of Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD), Mapping and ITI's Mobile License, all ITI products are provided with a site license
for use at a single site, on a single Local Area Network (LAN).

Use of ITI's software on any mobile device requires a mobile license.  ITI provides up to two (2) Remote Desktop licenses for use by
System Administrators in supporting their system.

Note:  All Enterprise edition modules require a concurrent user license of Microsoft SQL, sold separately.  This involves a server license
and a client access license for each workstation.

COMMUNICATION VIA SECURE WEB SERVICES:

The ITI software located at the Agency’s site will communicate with ITI via secure web services.   During this communication, information
of the following nature will be passed:

Information Passed from Agency Server to ITI

* Configuration information for use in providing support.
* Use information regarding user and activity counts associated with ITI’s pricing model and for use by ITI to enhance the user experience.
* Hardware and operating system information about the computers on which ITI’s software runs.
* Emails or other communications from users to ITI.
Note:   ITI WILL NOT COLLECT ANY CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION from Agency’s system.
Information Passed from ITI to Agency Server
* Software and database updates, including stored procedures, assemblies, components or related modules associated with software
revisions, including HELP files.
* Licensing updates, associated with ensuring that Agency has uninterrupted use of the software and to protect ITI’s intellectual property.
* Emails or other communications from ITI to users.

PRODUCTS NOT INCLUDED:

ITI's product offering is limited to those ITI software modules and third-party products specifically listed in this proposal.  Additional
products or interfaces not specifically listed in this proposal are not included.

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED:

With the exception of those specified herein, this proposal does not include services such as data conversion, software installation,
training, configuration, configuration review, or startup assistance, including on-site services.

In the event that any Federal, State, County or Municipal agency or body requires on-site activities to certify software for use by your
Agency, your Agency will be responsible for paying actual travel, lodging, meals and related expenses for ITI personnel involved in said
certification.

Services - Data Conversion:

The data conversion will be authored at ITI's offices and will remain the property of ITI.  Upon completion of the initial engineering work, ITI
will provide your agency with a test conversion for review.  You will have thirty (30) calendar days (Initial Review Period) to identify any
issues, including mis-mapped fields or missing data.  Upon receipt of all reported issues within the Initial Review Period, ITI will correct any
deficiencies within the Scope of Work defined in our quotation, and will provide an additional test conversion with a ten (10) calendar day
review period (Subsequent Review Period).  ITI will correct any deficiencies reported within the Subsequent Review Period that were part
of those issues originally reported.  Subsequent test conversions will contain a sub-set of the full conversion as necessary to demonstrate
that the necessary corrections have been made.  This process will repeat until all originally reported deficiencies, within the Scope of
Work, have been corrected.

In the event that no response is received within any Review Period, the subject test conversion will be accepted "as is", any remaining
balance will be billed and the conversion will be available to be performed on the live database.

Please understand that ITI cannot re-visit a data conversion project for issues identified beyond the defined Review Period(s) without
additional charges.  Data conversions are time intensive and each one is unique.  Once our engineering personnel are finished and
reassigned to other projects, it takes a significant effort to re-visit a closed project.   For this reason, it is imperative that you spend the time
necessary to vigorously evaluate the test conversion and provide comments within the specified Review Period(s).

The actual data conversion will be performed remotely by ITI technicians on your server or ITI’s Hosted server, whichever may apply.  In
the event that your agency is providing the server, remote access will need to be provided to ITI.

Item Notes PriceLicense / Qty

Services - Data Conversion (1) 1 106,000.00

Discount 1 -21,000.00

This quotation is valid through 02/28/2016 and is subject to the terms,
conditions, and requirements below.

Subtotal

Sales Tax

Shipping & Handling

Total

85,000.00

0.00

0.00

85,000.00

10430 Baur Boulevard

www.itiusa.comSt. Louis, Missouri  63132

Sales:  800.814.4843

Local:  314.997.5336

Fax:  314.997.5342

This quotation is based on the following agency profile:

Quotation Number:  Q201610350

Date:   01/13/2016

Page: 1 of 5

To: O'FALLON POLICE DEPARTMENT

118 EAST WASHINGTON STREET

O'FALLON, IL  62269

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Public Safety Software

Quotation

Project Description: For Information, Contact:CUSTOM DATA CONVERSION Drew Steward



•  Witnesses
    o  Address
    o  Phone Number

Warrant records will be converted from the source into the ITI RMS database.  The converted warrants will contain the following data.

Warrant
•  Warrant Number
•  Type
•  Issued Date/Time
•  Officer
•  Offense
•  Subject
    o  Address
    o  Phone
•  Status
    o  Status records from the source DB will be converted into the notes for the ITI warrant.
•  Activity
    o Service activity will be converted from the source DB as a service attempt in the ITI database where possible. Where this is not
possible the activity will be converted into the notes of the ITI warrant.

Ticket/Citation records will also be converted from the source database into the ITI Summons module.  It appears that the source system
allowed for more than one offense to be linked to a single ticket/citation.   In this situation, an ITI Summons will be created for each
offense.  The following data from the source ticket/citation will be converted.

Ticket/Citation
•  Ticket Number
•  Date/Time
•  Location
•  Charge
•  Person
    o  Address
    o  Phone
•  Vehicle

For all persons converted an attempt will be made to match the records with existing person records in the database in order to create an
ITI master name repository.

CAD data from the source database will be converted into the ITI CAD module.  The following data will be considered during the CAD
conversion.

Calls For Service
•  Events
•  Activity Log
•  Units
•  Officers
•  Location
•  Person
•  Vehicle
•  Call For Service Number
•  Incident Number
•  Call Type
•  Open Date/Time
•  Close Date/Time
•  Arrive Date/Time
•  Dispatch Date/Time

Alerts will also be converted into the ITI database.  The following alert fields will be converted:

Alert
•  Alert Type
•  Effective Date
•  Expiration Date
•  Description

ITI will also import external files into its database.  These files are a variety of file types (MS Word, PDF, BMP, JPG, etc.) and will need to
be located by the client.  After all RMS/CAD records have been converted, the external files will be processed to see if there is a reference
to a RMS/CAD record. If a reference is found, a file will be imported into the ITI RMS/CAD database as an associated file attachment. If
the reference points to an area where the ITI software does not allow file attachments then a standalone file attachment record will be
created. A reference to that file attachment record created will be inserted into the notes of the associated report. If a file in the reference
table cannot be found, information about that missing file will be included in a conversion log.

Much of the data in the O’Fallon legacy database is stored as codes. ITI and O’Fallon will need to work together to determine the meaning
of these codes during the course of the data conversion.  Any data being converted from the O’Fallon system that does not directly map to
a value in the ITI RMS/CAD database will be converted as notes.  In order to accurately convert the data, ITI will require a minimum of ten
(10) sample reports containing data from the areas listed above.

The data conversion will be authored at ITI's offices and will remain the property of ITI.  Upon completion of the initial engineering work, ITI
will provide your agency with a test conversion for review.  You will have thirty (30) calendar days (Initial Review Period) to identify any
issues, including mis-mapped fields or missing data.  Upon receipt of all reported issues within the Initial Review Period, ITI will correct any
deficiencies within the Scope of Work defined in our quotation, and will provide an additional test conversion with a ten (10) calendar day
review period (Subsequent Review Period).  ITI will correct any deficiencies reported within the Subsequent Review Period that were part
of those issues originally reported.  Subsequent test conversions will contain a sub-set of the full conversion as necessary to demonstrate
that the necessary corrections have been made.  This process will repeat until all originally reported deficiencies, within the Scope of
Work, have been corrected.

In the event that no response is received within any Review Period, the subject test conversion will be accepted "as is", any remaining
balance will be billed and the conversion will be available to be performed on the live database.

Please understand that ITI cannot re-visit a data conversion project for issues identified beyond the defined Review Period(s) without
additional charges.  Data conversions are time intensive and each one is unique.  Once our engineering personnel are finished and
reassigned to other projects, it takes a significant effort to re-visit a closed project.   For this reason, it is imperative that you spend the time
necessary to vigorously evaluate the test conversion and provide comments within the specified Review Period(s).

The actual data conversion will be performed remotely by ITI technicians on your server or ITI’s Hosted server, whichever may apply.  In
the event that your agency is providing the server, remote access will need to be provided to ITI.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
ITI’S PAYMENT TERMS:

ITI requires a 50% deposit to schedule the development of the conversion utility.  The remaining 50% will be invoiced NET thirty (30) days
upon acceptance of the test conversion.

ALL HARDWARE (PRINTERS, DRIVER'S LICENSE SCANNERS, PAPER PRODUCTS, ETC.) AND MICROSOFT SQL LICENSE SALES
ARE FINAL AND NO RETURNS WILL BE ACCEPTED.

AUTHORIZED PURCHASE:

With an order, ITI may require a copy of the city ordinance or county resolution that authorizes the agency to acquire ITI's products and
services.   Usually, this only involves a copy of the meeting minutes, of your governing body, where ITI's proposal was accepted.

Agency acknowledges and agrees that any purchase order issued by Agency, in accordance with this quotation, is intended only to
establish payment authority for Agency's internal accounting purposes.  No purchase order shall be considered to be a counteroffer,
amendment, modification, or other revision to these Terms and Conditions.

ITI will have the right to deactivate any software not paid for in accordance with the payment terms of this quotation.  In the event of such
deactivation, client shall have no recourse against Information Technologies, Inc. for their inability to use said software.

SOFTWARE TELEPHONE TECHNICAL SUPPORT (ANNUAL CONTRACT SUPPORT):

Customer agrees to pay Annual Support for a period of twelve (12) months on a pre-paid basis.  Year one begins on the purchase date of
the software.  ITI will not be responsible for providing support in the event that client does not purchase annual support contracts from ITI
in years subsequent to year one.  Year two and subsequent years are invoiced prior to the purchase anniversary date at ITI's prevailing
support prices.

SOFTWARE UPDATES:

ITI periodically produces software updates, which are made available to all registered agencies who are currently on annual support.
Software updates do not include upgrades, which are considered new products.  Upgrades may include changes in back-end database,
supported operating system(s) or related major features.

SOFTWARE SUPPORT:

In order to provide support and software updates, ITI requires a high-speed (broadband) internet connection at the client agency.  In the
event the agency does not provide the required high-speed internet connection, software support and updates will not be available.

System Administrators who have completed ITI System Administration training are eligible to receive telephone technical support.  Support
is available Monday through Friday (excluding holidays), 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM central time.

After hours telephone technical support is available on a per-incident basis.  At the time of this quotation the fees are $75.00 per-incident
(Agencies within the United States) and $100.00 per-incident (Agencies outside the United States), regardless of the time required.
Clients have the opportunity to identify personnel who are authorized to request after hours telephone technical support.

For support purposes, ITI utilizes software web connectivity tools to connect to the client agency server(s) or workstation(s).  Client agency
is responsible for ensuring that ITI has the proper connectivity and authentication to utilize these tools.  A successful connectivity test will
be required prior to scheduling software installation or other services.  Client agency is responsible for all appropriate security measures
including, but not limited to, an internet firewall.

Software telephone technical support does not include software re-installation and/or server migration associated with infrastructure
changes.  These services are outside of ITI's standard software telephone technical support.  ITI can provide dedicated help for these
needs at additional cost.

ITI reserves the right to refuse support to an agency that is more than two releases behind and refuses to apply updates.  In the event of
such action, no refund of un-used portions of service will be made.  ITI will work with the agency on a mutually-agreeable update schedule
to be performed during ITI’s normal business hours.

SOFTWARE LICENSING:

The standard ITI shrink-wrap software license agreement shall apply from the date of software shipment.

With the exception of Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD), Mapping and ITI's Mobile License, all ITI products are provided with a site license
for use at a single site, on a single Local Area Network (LAN).

Use of ITI's software on any mobile device requires a mobile license.  ITI provides up to two (2) Remote Desktop licenses for use by
System Administrators in supporting their system.

Note:  All Enterprise edition modules require a concurrent user license of Microsoft SQL, sold separately.  This involves a server license
and a client access license for each workstation.

COMMUNICATION VIA SECURE WEB SERVICES:

The ITI software located at the Agency’s site will communicate with ITI via secure web services.   During this communication, information
of the following nature will be passed:

Information Passed from Agency Server to ITI

* Configuration information for use in providing support.
* Use information regarding user and activity counts associated with ITI’s pricing model and for use by ITI to enhance the user experience.
* Hardware and operating system information about the computers on which ITI’s software runs.
* Emails or other communications from users to ITI.
Note:   ITI WILL NOT COLLECT ANY CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION from Agency’s system.
Information Passed from ITI to Agency Server
* Software and database updates, including stored procedures, assemblies, components or related modules associated with software
revisions, including HELP files.
* Licensing updates, associated with ensuring that Agency has uninterrupted use of the software and to protect ITI’s intellectual property.
* Emails or other communications from ITI to users.

PRODUCTS NOT INCLUDED:

ITI's product offering is limited to those ITI software modules and third-party products specifically listed in this proposal.  Additional
products or interfaces not specifically listed in this proposal are not included.

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED:

With the exception of those specified herein, this proposal does not include services such as data conversion, software installation,
training, configuration, configuration review, or startup assistance, including on-site services.

In the event that any Federal, State, County or Municipal agency or body requires on-site activities to certify software for use by your
Agency, your Agency will be responsible for paying actual travel, lodging, meals and related expenses for ITI personnel involved in said
certification.

Services - Data Conversion:

The data conversion will be authored at ITI's offices and will remain the property of ITI.  Upon completion of the initial engineering work, ITI
will provide your agency with a test conversion for review.  You will have thirty (30) calendar days (Initial Review Period) to identify any
issues, including mis-mapped fields or missing data.  Upon receipt of all reported issues within the Initial Review Period, ITI will correct any
deficiencies within the Scope of Work defined in our quotation, and will provide an additional test conversion with a ten (10) calendar day
review period (Subsequent Review Period).  ITI will correct any deficiencies reported within the Subsequent Review Period that were part
of those issues originally reported.  Subsequent test conversions will contain a sub-set of the full conversion as necessary to demonstrate
that the necessary corrections have been made.  This process will repeat until all originally reported deficiencies, within the Scope of
Work, have been corrected.

In the event that no response is received within any Review Period, the subject test conversion will be accepted "as is", any remaining
balance will be billed and the conversion will be available to be performed on the live database.

Please understand that ITI cannot re-visit a data conversion project for issues identified beyond the defined Review Period(s) without
additional charges.  Data conversions are time intensive and each one is unique.  Once our engineering personnel are finished and
reassigned to other projects, it takes a significant effort to re-visit a closed project.   For this reason, it is imperative that you spend the time
necessary to vigorously evaluate the test conversion and provide comments within the specified Review Period(s).

The actual data conversion will be performed remotely by ITI technicians on your server or ITI’s Hosted server, whichever may apply.  In
the event that your agency is providing the server, remote access will need to be provided to ITI.

10430 Baur Boulevard

www.itiusa.comSt. Louis, Missouri  63132

Sales:  800.814.4843

Local:  314.997.5336

Fax:  314.997.5342

Quotation Number:  Q201610350

Date:   01/13/2016

Page: 2 of 5

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC.



ITI will also import external files into its database.  These files are a variety of file types (MS Word, PDF, BMP, JPG, etc.) and will need to
be located by the client.  After all RMS/CAD records have been converted, the external files will be processed to see if there is a reference
to a RMS/CAD record. If a reference is found, a file will be imported into the ITI RMS/CAD database as an associated file attachment. If
the reference points to an area where the ITI software does not allow file attachments then a standalone file attachment record will be
created. A reference to that file attachment record created will be inserted into the notes of the associated report. If a file in the reference
table cannot be found, information about that missing file will be included in a conversion log.

Much of the data in the O’Fallon legacy database is stored as codes. ITI and O’Fallon will need to work together to determine the meaning
of these codes during the course of the data conversion.  Any data being converted from the O’Fallon system that does not directly map to
a value in the ITI RMS/CAD database will be converted as notes.  In order to accurately convert the data, ITI will require a minimum of ten
(10) sample reports containing data from the areas listed above.

The data conversion will be authored at ITI's offices and will remain the property of ITI.  Upon completion of the initial engineering work, ITI
will provide your agency with a test conversion for review.  You will have thirty (30) calendar days (Initial Review Period) to identify any
issues, including mis-mapped fields or missing data.  Upon receipt of all reported issues within the Initial Review Period, ITI will correct any
deficiencies within the Scope of Work defined in our quotation, and will provide an additional test conversion with a ten (10) calendar day
review period (Subsequent Review Period).  ITI will correct any deficiencies reported within the Subsequent Review Period that were part
of those issues originally reported.  Subsequent test conversions will contain a sub-set of the full conversion as necessary to demonstrate
that the necessary corrections have been made.  This process will repeat until all originally reported deficiencies, within the Scope of
Work, have been corrected.

In the event that no response is received within any Review Period, the subject test conversion will be accepted "as is", any remaining
balance will be billed and the conversion will be available to be performed on the live database.

Please understand that ITI cannot re-visit a data conversion project for issues identified beyond the defined Review Period(s) without
additional charges.  Data conversions are time intensive and each one is unique.  Once our engineering personnel are finished and
reassigned to other projects, it takes a significant effort to re-visit a closed project.   For this reason, it is imperative that you spend the time
necessary to vigorously evaluate the test conversion and provide comments within the specified Review Period(s).

The actual data conversion will be performed remotely by ITI technicians on your server or ITI’s Hosted server, whichever may apply.  In
the event that your agency is providing the server, remote access will need to be provided to ITI.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
ITI’S PAYMENT TERMS:

ITI requires a 50% deposit to schedule the development of the conversion utility.  The remaining 50% will be invoiced NET thirty (30) days
upon acceptance of the test conversion.

ALL HARDWARE (PRINTERS, DRIVER'S LICENSE SCANNERS, PAPER PRODUCTS, ETC.) AND MICROSOFT SQL LICENSE SALES
ARE FINAL AND NO RETURNS WILL BE ACCEPTED.

AUTHORIZED PURCHASE:

With an order, ITI may require a copy of the city ordinance or county resolution that authorizes the agency to acquire ITI's products and
services.   Usually, this only involves a copy of the meeting minutes, of your governing body, where ITI's proposal was accepted.

Agency acknowledges and agrees that any purchase order issued by Agency, in accordance with this quotation, is intended only to
establish payment authority for Agency's internal accounting purposes.  No purchase order shall be considered to be a counteroffer,
amendment, modification, or other revision to these Terms and Conditions.

ITI will have the right to deactivate any software not paid for in accordance with the payment terms of this quotation.  In the event of such
deactivation, client shall have no recourse against Information Technologies, Inc. for their inability to use said software.

SOFTWARE TELEPHONE TECHNICAL SUPPORT (ANNUAL CONTRACT SUPPORT):

Customer agrees to pay Annual Support for a period of twelve (12) months on a pre-paid basis.  Year one begins on the purchase date of
the software.  ITI will not be responsible for providing support in the event that client does not purchase annual support contracts from ITI
in years subsequent to year one.  Year two and subsequent years are invoiced prior to the purchase anniversary date at ITI's prevailing
support prices.

SOFTWARE UPDATES:

ITI periodically produces software updates, which are made available to all registered agencies who are currently on annual support.
Software updates do not include upgrades, which are considered new products.  Upgrades may include changes in back-end database,
supported operating system(s) or related major features.

SOFTWARE SUPPORT:

In order to provide support and software updates, ITI requires a high-speed (broadband) internet connection at the client agency.  In the
event the agency does not provide the required high-speed internet connection, software support and updates will not be available.

System Administrators who have completed ITI System Administration training are eligible to receive telephone technical support.  Support
is available Monday through Friday (excluding holidays), 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM central time.

After hours telephone technical support is available on a per-incident basis.  At the time of this quotation the fees are $75.00 per-incident
(Agencies within the United States) and $100.00 per-incident (Agencies outside the United States), regardless of the time required.
Clients have the opportunity to identify personnel who are authorized to request after hours telephone technical support.

For support purposes, ITI utilizes software web connectivity tools to connect to the client agency server(s) or workstation(s).  Client agency
is responsible for ensuring that ITI has the proper connectivity and authentication to utilize these tools.  A successful connectivity test will
be required prior to scheduling software installation or other services.  Client agency is responsible for all appropriate security measures
including, but not limited to, an internet firewall.

Software telephone technical support does not include software re-installation and/or server migration associated with infrastructure
changes.  These services are outside of ITI's standard software telephone technical support.  ITI can provide dedicated help for these
needs at additional cost.

ITI reserves the right to refuse support to an agency that is more than two releases behind and refuses to apply updates.  In the event of
such action, no refund of un-used portions of service will be made.  ITI will work with the agency on a mutually-agreeable update schedule
to be performed during ITI’s normal business hours.

SOFTWARE LICENSING:

The standard ITI shrink-wrap software license agreement shall apply from the date of software shipment.

With the exception of Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD), Mapping and ITI's Mobile License, all ITI products are provided with a site license
for use at a single site, on a single Local Area Network (LAN).

Use of ITI's software on any mobile device requires a mobile license.  ITI provides up to two (2) Remote Desktop licenses for use by
System Administrators in supporting their system.

Note:  All Enterprise edition modules require a concurrent user license of Microsoft SQL, sold separately.  This involves a server license
and a client access license for each workstation.

COMMUNICATION VIA SECURE WEB SERVICES:

The ITI software located at the Agency’s site will communicate with ITI via secure web services.   During this communication, information
of the following nature will be passed:

Information Passed from Agency Server to ITI

* Configuration information for use in providing support.
* Use information regarding user and activity counts associated with ITI’s pricing model and for use by ITI to enhance the user experience.
* Hardware and operating system information about the computers on which ITI’s software runs.
* Emails or other communications from users to ITI.
Note:   ITI WILL NOT COLLECT ANY CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION from Agency’s system.
Information Passed from ITI to Agency Server
* Software and database updates, including stored procedures, assemblies, components or related modules associated with software
revisions, including HELP files.
* Licensing updates, associated with ensuring that Agency has uninterrupted use of the software and to protect ITI’s intellectual property.
* Emails or other communications from ITI to users.

PRODUCTS NOT INCLUDED:

ITI's product offering is limited to those ITI software modules and third-party products specifically listed in this proposal.  Additional
products or interfaces not specifically listed in this proposal are not included.

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED:

With the exception of those specified herein, this proposal does not include services such as data conversion, software installation,
training, configuration, configuration review, or startup assistance, including on-site services.

In the event that any Federal, State, County or Municipal agency or body requires on-site activities to certify software for use by your
Agency, your Agency will be responsible for paying actual travel, lodging, meals and related expenses for ITI personnel involved in said
certification.

Services - Data Conversion:

The data conversion will be authored at ITI's offices and will remain the property of ITI.  Upon completion of the initial engineering work, ITI
will provide your agency with a test conversion for review.  You will have thirty (30) calendar days (Initial Review Period) to identify any
issues, including mis-mapped fields or missing data.  Upon receipt of all reported issues within the Initial Review Period, ITI will correct any
deficiencies within the Scope of Work defined in our quotation, and will provide an additional test conversion with a ten (10) calendar day
review period (Subsequent Review Period).  ITI will correct any deficiencies reported within the Subsequent Review Period that were part
of those issues originally reported.  Subsequent test conversions will contain a sub-set of the full conversion as necessary to demonstrate
that the necessary corrections have been made.  This process will repeat until all originally reported deficiencies, within the Scope of
Work, have been corrected.

In the event that no response is received within any Review Period, the subject test conversion will be accepted "as is", any remaining
balance will be billed and the conversion will be available to be performed on the live database.

Please understand that ITI cannot re-visit a data conversion project for issues identified beyond the defined Review Period(s) without
additional charges.  Data conversions are time intensive and each one is unique.  Once our engineering personnel are finished and
reassigned to other projects, it takes a significant effort to re-visit a closed project.   For this reason, it is imperative that you spend the time
necessary to vigorously evaluate the test conversion and provide comments within the specified Review Period(s).

The actual data conversion will be performed remotely by ITI technicians on your server or ITI’s Hosted server, whichever may apply.  In
the event that your agency is providing the server, remote access will need to be provided to ITI.

10430 Baur Boulevard

www.itiusa.comSt. Louis, Missouri  63132

Sales:  800.814.4843

Local:  314.997.5336

Fax:  314.997.5342

Quotation Number:  Q201610350

Date:   01/13/2016

Page: 3 of 5

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC.



ITI periodically produces software updates, which are made available to all registered agencies who are currently on annual support.
Software updates do not include upgrades, which are considered new products.  Upgrades may include changes in back-end database,
supported operating system(s) or related major features.

SOFTWARE SUPPORT:

In order to provide support and software updates, ITI requires a high-speed (broadband) internet connection at the client agency.  In the
event the agency does not provide the required high-speed internet connection, software support and updates will not be available.

System Administrators who have completed ITI System Administration training are eligible to receive telephone technical support.  Support
is available Monday through Friday (excluding holidays), 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM central time.

After hours telephone technical support is available on a per-incident basis.  At the time of this quotation the fees are $75.00 per-incident
(Agencies within the United States) and $100.00 per-incident (Agencies outside the United States), regardless of the time required.
Clients have the opportunity to identify personnel who are authorized to request after hours telephone technical support.

For support purposes, ITI utilizes software web connectivity tools to connect to the client agency server(s) or workstation(s).  Client agency
is responsible for ensuring that ITI has the proper connectivity and authentication to utilize these tools.  A successful connectivity test will
be required prior to scheduling software installation or other services.  Client agency is responsible for all appropriate security measures
including, but not limited to, an internet firewall.

Software telephone technical support does not include software re-installation and/or server migration associated with infrastructure
changes.  These services are outside of ITI's standard software telephone technical support.  ITI can provide dedicated help for these
needs at additional cost.

ITI reserves the right to refuse support to an agency that is more than two releases behind and refuses to apply updates.  In the event of
such action, no refund of un-used portions of service will be made.  ITI will work with the agency on a mutually-agreeable update schedule
to be performed during ITI’s normal business hours.

SOFTWARE LICENSING:

The standard ITI shrink-wrap software license agreement shall apply from the date of software shipment.

With the exception of Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD), Mapping and ITI's Mobile License, all ITI products are provided with a site license
for use at a single site, on a single Local Area Network (LAN).

Use of ITI's software on any mobile device requires a mobile license.  ITI provides up to two (2) Remote Desktop licenses for use by
System Administrators in supporting their system.

Note:  All Enterprise edition modules require a concurrent user license of Microsoft SQL, sold separately.  This involves a server license
and a client access license for each workstation.

COMMUNICATION VIA SECURE WEB SERVICES:

The ITI software located at the Agency’s site will communicate with ITI via secure web services.   During this communication, information
of the following nature will be passed:

Information Passed from Agency Server to ITI

* Configuration information for use in providing support.
* Use information regarding user and activity counts associated with ITI’s pricing model and for use by ITI to enhance the user experience.
* Hardware and operating system information about the computers on which ITI’s software runs.
* Emails or other communications from users to ITI.
Note:   ITI WILL NOT COLLECT ANY CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION from Agency’s system.
Information Passed from ITI to Agency Server
* Software and database updates, including stored procedures, assemblies, components or related modules associated with software
revisions, including HELP files.
* Licensing updates, associated with ensuring that Agency has uninterrupted use of the software and to protect ITI’s intellectual property.
* Emails or other communications from ITI to users.

PRODUCTS NOT INCLUDED:

ITI's product offering is limited to those ITI software modules and third-party products specifically listed in this proposal.  Additional
products or interfaces not specifically listed in this proposal are not included.

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED:

With the exception of those specified herein, this proposal does not include services such as data conversion, software installation,
training, configuration, configuration review, or startup assistance, including on-site services.

In the event that any Federal, State, County or Municipal agency or body requires on-site activities to certify software for use by your
Agency, your Agency will be responsible for paying actual travel, lodging, meals and related expenses for ITI personnel involved in said
certification.

Services - Data Conversion:

The data conversion will be authored at ITI's offices and will remain the property of ITI.  Upon completion of the initial engineering work, ITI
will provide your agency with a test conversion for review.  You will have thirty (30) calendar days (Initial Review Period) to identify any
issues, including mis-mapped fields or missing data.  Upon receipt of all reported issues within the Initial Review Period, ITI will correct any
deficiencies within the Scope of Work defined in our quotation, and will provide an additional test conversion with a ten (10) calendar day
review period (Subsequent Review Period).  ITI will correct any deficiencies reported within the Subsequent Review Period that were part
of those issues originally reported.  Subsequent test conversions will contain a sub-set of the full conversion as necessary to demonstrate
that the necessary corrections have been made.  This process will repeat until all originally reported deficiencies, within the Scope of
Work, have been corrected.

In the event that no response is received within any Review Period, the subject test conversion will be accepted "as is", any remaining
balance will be billed and the conversion will be available to be performed on the live database.

Please understand that ITI cannot re-visit a data conversion project for issues identified beyond the defined Review Period(s) without
additional charges.  Data conversions are time intensive and each one is unique.  Once our engineering personnel are finished and
reassigned to other projects, it takes a significant effort to re-visit a closed project.   For this reason, it is imperative that you spend the time
necessary to vigorously evaluate the test conversion and provide comments within the specified Review Period(s).

The actual data conversion will be performed remotely by ITI technicians on your server or ITI’s Hosted server, whichever may apply.  In
the event that your agency is providing the server, remote access will need to be provided to ITI.

10430 Baur Boulevard

www.itiusa.comSt. Louis, Missouri  63132

Sales:  800.814.4843

Local:  314.997.5336

Fax:  314.997.5342

Quotation Number:  Q201610350

Date:   01/13/2016

Page: 4 of 5

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC.



products or interfaces not specifically listed in this proposal are not included.

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED:

With the exception of those specified herein, this proposal does not include services such as data conversion, software installation,
training, configuration, configuration review, or startup assistance, including on-site services.

In the event that any Federal, State, County or Municipal agency or body requires on-site activities to certify software for use by your
Agency, your Agency will be responsible for paying actual travel, lodging, meals and related expenses for ITI personnel involved in said
certification.

Services - Data Conversion:

The data conversion will be authored at ITI's offices and will remain the property of ITI.  Upon completion of the initial engineering work, ITI
will provide your agency with a test conversion for review.  You will have thirty (30) calendar days (Initial Review Period) to identify any
issues, including mis-mapped fields or missing data.  Upon receipt of all reported issues within the Initial Review Period, ITI will correct any
deficiencies within the Scope of Work defined in our quotation, and will provide an additional test conversion with a ten (10) calendar day
review period (Subsequent Review Period).  ITI will correct any deficiencies reported within the Subsequent Review Period that were part
of those issues originally reported.  Subsequent test conversions will contain a sub-set of the full conversion as necessary to demonstrate
that the necessary corrections have been made.  This process will repeat until all originally reported deficiencies, within the Scope of
Work, have been corrected.

In the event that no response is received within any Review Period, the subject test conversion will be accepted "as is", any remaining
balance will be billed and the conversion will be available to be performed on the live database.

Please understand that ITI cannot re-visit a data conversion project for issues identified beyond the defined Review Period(s) without
additional charges.  Data conversions are time intensive and each one is unique.  Once our engineering personnel are finished and
reassigned to other projects, it takes a significant effort to re-visit a closed project.   For this reason, it is imperative that you spend the time
necessary to vigorously evaluate the test conversion and provide comments within the specified Review Period(s).

The actual data conversion will be performed remotely by ITI technicians on your server or ITI’s Hosted server, whichever may apply.  In
the event that your agency is providing the server, remote access will need to be provided to ITI.

10430 Baur Boulevard

www.itiusa.comSt. Louis, Missouri  63132

Sales:  800.814.4843

Local:  314.997.5336

Fax:  314.997.5342

Quotation Number:  Q201610350

Date:   01/13/2016

Page: 5 of 5

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC.



CITY OF O’FALLON, ILLINOIS 
RESOLUTION 2016 -   

 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC (ITI) TO DELIVER CAD, RMS, JMS 
AND MOBILE SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of O’Fallon, a municipal corporation, with a Police Department (“Police 

Department”) that uses New World Systems Software Solution for CAD (Computer Aided Dispatch) and 
RMS (Records Management System) and Mobile Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of O’Fallon and the City of Fairview Heights are consolidating their 

communications center as part of a State of Illinois PSAP consolidation mandate; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairview Heights Police Department uses Information Technologies, Inc 

for CAD (Computer Aided Dispatch) and RMS (Records Management System) and Mobil Services, and as 
part of the consolidation the City of Fairview Heights Police Department and the City of O’Fallon Police 
Department need to operate on the same CAD (Computer Aided Dispatch) and RMS (Records 
Management System) and Mobile Services System; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of O’Fallon’s IT Coordinator assisted the O’Fallon Police Department in 

evaluating the ITI and New World Systems.  After carefully reviewing cost, reliability and functionality of 
the ITI and New World Systems, the O’Fallon Police Department and IT Department has selected ITI as 
the company that most nearly meets the city’s requirements for CAD, RMS, JMS and Mobile services.   

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF O’FALLON, ST. CLAIR COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
That the City of O’Fallon authorizes the Mayor to a contract with Information 

Technologies Inc. (ITI) to provide a fully integrated government software solution to 
include  CAD (Computer Aided Dispatch) and RMS (Records Management System) and 
Mobil Services, project management, data file conversion, training, maintenance 
agreement and guarantee, a copy of which is attached hereto and made part hereof. 
 
 
 
Passed and approved this 21st day of March 2016. 

ATTEST:      Approved: 
 

 
 
 
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Philip A. Goodwin, City Clerk   Gary L. Graham, Mayor 
 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160307CRHolland.docx 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

To:   Mayor Graham and City Council   
 
From:   Ted Shekell, Community Development Director 
  Walter Denton, City Administrator 
 
Date:   March 7, 2016 
 
Subject:  P2016-01: CR Holland, Planned Use – 1st Reading 
 
List of committees that have reviewed: The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the 
above referenced application at their February 9, 2016 meeting. The Commission voted 7-ayes and 0-
nays to approve the requested Rezoning and Planned Use application for CR Holland, subject to the 
conditions recommended by staff. The Community Development Committee reviewed this application 
at its February 22, 2016 meeting and recommended approval, with the addition of Condition #6 
pertaining to a sidewalk along Highway 50 with a vote of 6 ayes to 0 nays. 
 
Background 
Ron Bright of RGB Surveying on behalf of Chad Holland of CR Holland Commercial Real Estate has 
filed an application requesting a change of zoning from SR-2, Single Family Residential Dwelling 
District to O-1(P) Planned Office District for a parcel of land at 718 West Highway 50.  CR Holland will 
be using one of the existing houses as a real estate office, a second existing house will be a rental 
property and the large pole barn will be used for the company’s storage of tools and materials for 
repairing and maintenance of rental property. 
 
The applicant will be remodeling the interior of the house for the use of office space.  Very little to no 
modifications are being made to the outside of the building. The existing access will remain the same 
and there is an existing asphalt pad that will be striped for vehicle parking.   
 
Please see the attached Plan Commission Project Report for more detailed information on the 
proposal. 
 
Legal Considerations, if any: None 
 
Budget Impact: None 
 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the project as proposed, for a real estate 
office, rental property and storage for the real estate/construction company, with the follow conditions: 

1. A variance to the sidewalk requirement along Highway 50. 
2. A variance to allow the landscaping plan to be constructed as shown on the site plan. 
3. The use of storage associated with the Planned Use application shall be limited to the 

owner’s property maintenance business and must remain within pole barn.  No outside 
storage is permitted. 

4. The Planned Use approval permits a single-family residential unit and permits the office 
building to revert back to a single-family residential unit in the future. 

 



5. If new construction of a building is proposed in the future, the site will be required to 
receive a new planned use approval and include improvements, such as tying onto the 
City’s sewer infrastructure, provide the necessary sidewalks and all other development 
related improvements as defined by the Development Manual and Zoning Code. 

6. In lieu of constructing a sidewalk along Highway 50 at the time of approval of this 
planned use, the owner shall provide a letter of credit for $2,400 (120’ of frontage x 
4’ wide sidewalk at $5.00 / square feet) until such time as the property redevelops 
or the land to the west and east develops with the installation of sidewalks. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 623, ZONING 
DISTRICTS OF THE CITY OF 
O’FALLON, ILLINOIS  
(DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS “CR 
HOLLAND COMMERCIAL REAL 
ESTATE OFFICE”) LOCATED AT 
718 WEST HIGHWAY 50 ON PARCEL 
NUMBER 04-30.0-300-006 

 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant, Chad Holland of CR Holland Commercial Real Estate has 

filed an application requesting approval of a planned use rezoning to authorize the use of an 
existing houses as a real estate office, a second existing house will be a rental property and the 
large pole barn will be used for the company’s storage of tools and materials for repairing and 
maintenance of rental property at 718 West Highway 50 in O’Fallon; and 

 
WHEREAS, the applicant has filed an application with the City of O’Fallon, Illinois 

pursuant to the requirements of all applicable laws, including City Ordinance 3471, “Planned 
Uses”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of O’Fallon, Illinois held a public 

hearing on February 9, 2016, in accordance with state statute, and recommended to approve the 
petitioner’s request to obtain a O-1(P) Planned Office District zoning for the property with a vote 
of 7 ayes to 0 nays as outlined in the adopted Planning Commission Report, attached hereto and 
declared to be an inseparable part hereof (Exhibit A); and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2016 the Community Development Committee of the City 

Council reviewed the rezoning and recommended approval, with the addition of Condition #6 
pertaining to a sidewalk along Highway 50 with a vote of 6 ayes to 0 nays. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF O’FALLON, ST. CLAIR COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. That upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the described property, known 

as “CR Holland Commercial Real Estate”, be henceforth classified as zoning district O-1(P) 
Planned Office District with the following conditions: 

 
1. A variance to the sidewalk requirement along Highway 50. 
2. A variance to allow the landscaping plan to be constructed as shown on the site plan. 



 2

3. The use of storage associated with the Planned Use application shall be limited to the 
owner’s property maintenance business and must remain within the pole barn.  No 
outside storage is permitted. 

4. The Planned Use approval permits a single-family residential unit and permits the 
office building to revert back to a single-family residential unit in the future. 

5. If new construction of a building is proposed in the future, the site will be required to 
receive a new planned use approval and include improvements, such as tying onto the 
City’s sewer infrastructure, provide the necessary sidewalks and all other 
development related improvements as defined by the Development Manual and 
Zoning Code. 

6. In lieu of constructing a sidewalk along Highway 50 at the time of approval of this 
planned use, the owner shall provide a letter of credit for $2,400 (120’ of frontage x 
4’ wide sidewalk at $5.00 / square feet) until such time as the property redevelops or 
the land to the west and east develops with the installation of sidewalks. 

 
Section 2. A Certified Copy of this ordinance, with all referenced attachments, shall be 

filed with the City Clerk’s office of the City of O’Fallon, Illinois.  
 
Upon its passage and approval, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten (10) 

days after its publication in pamphlet form as required by law.   
 

Passed by the City Council this ______ day of _______ 2016. 
 

*************************** 
 
ATTEST:      Approved by the Mayor this _____ day  

 
(seal)       of ________ 2016.  

 
          
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Philip A. Goodwin, City Clerk   Gary L. Graham, Mayor 

 
 

ROLL 
CALL: 

McCoskey Meile Albrecht Kueker Mouser Hagarty Roach  SUB 
TOTALS 

Aye         
Nay         
Absent         

 
ROLL 
CALL: 

Drolet Bennett Marsh Holden Smallheer Cozad Gerrish SUB 
TOTALS 

SUM OF 
TOTALS 

Aye          
Nay          
Absent          

 



 

C o m m u n i t y  D e v e l o p m e n t  D e p a r t m e n t  
2 5 5  S o u t h  L i n c o l n  A v e n u e ,  O ’ F a l l o n ,  I L   6 2 2 6 9    P :  6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 0 0  x  4    F : 6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 3 4  

 
I : \ P  &  Z \ Z O N E F I L E \ P e t i t i o n e r  F i l e s \ 2 0 1 6 \ C R  H o l l a n d  -  P 2 0 1 6 - 0 1 \ C R  H o l l a n d  P C  R e p o r t  2 - 9 - 2 0 1 6 . d o c  

 
P R O J E C T  R E P O R T  

 
TO:   Planning Commission 
FROM:  Justin Randall, Senior City Planner 
THRU:  Ted Shekell, Community Development Director 
DATE:  February 9, 2016 
PROJECT:   P2016-01: CR Holland, Planned Use
 
Location: 718 West Highway 50 
Ward: 6 
Applicant: Ron Bright on behalf of CR Holland Commercial Real Estate 
Owner: CR Holland Construction, LLC 
Submitted: December 29, 2015 
 
Background & Executive Summary 
Ron Bright of RGB Surveying on behalf of Chad Holland of CR Holland Commercial Real Estate has filed an 
application requesting a change of zoning from SR-2, Single Family Residential Dwelling District to O-1(P) Planned 
Office District for a parcel of land at 718 West Highway 50.  CR Holland will be using one of the existing houses as a 
real estate office, a second existing house will be a rental property and the large pole barn will be used for the 
company’s storage of tools and materials for repairing and maintenance of rental property. 
 
The applicant will be remodeling the interior of the house for the use of office space.  Very little to no modifications are 
being made to the outside of the building. The existing access will remain the same and there is an existing asphalt 
pad that will be striped for vehicle parking.   
 
Existing Conditions 
The subject property is currently zoned SR-2, Single Family Residential Dwelling District. The property currently has 
two houses, a detached garage and a large pole barn. The table below summarizes the zoning and land uses of 
adjacent properties. Please see the attached maps for more detailed information. 
 
 Adjacent Zoning     Adjacent Land Use 
North: MR-2/PUD     Eagle Ridge Apartments 
East: SR-2 & O-1     Single-family Residence and Scott Credit Union 
South B-1     Sonic and CVS (across Highway 50) 
West SR-2     Single-family Residence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 
C o m m u n i t y  D e v e l o p m e n t  D e p a r t m e n t  

2 5 5  S o u t h  L i n c o l n  A v e n u e ,  O ’ F a l l o n ,  I L  6 2 2 6 9    P :  6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 0 0  x  4    F : 6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 3 4   
 
 

Applicable Ordinances, Documents and Reports 
O’Fallon Comprehensive Plan:   
The O’Fallon Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map depicts the subject property as Office / Service.  The 
proposed rezoning to O-1 (P), Planned Office District is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  Additionally, 
Section 8.3 of the Comprehensive Plan provides a set of guidelines for the redevelopment of the section of Highway 
50 from Green Mount Road to Lawn Avenue, which is outlined below. 
 
Residential Conversion 
The City has three possible options for the area of the proposed rezoning. First is to do nothing, leaving it residential, 
thereby encouraging some of the properties to become rental or vacant at some point.  
 
The second option is to follow the recommendation of the 2001 Plan that proposed office designation with the 
condition that minimum 2.5-acre parcels be assembled. Landscaped buffers would be needed between this area and 
the houses surrounding each parcel. The proposals should encourage continuity of development, efficient traffic flow, 
and coordination between residential and commercial land uses. Office use is more appropriate in these locations 
than retail due to fewer turning movements, the hours of operation of offices would be daytime, display or intense 
parking lot lighting would not be needed, and the less intense, more residential scale of an office/business service 
area would enable new developments to be more compatible with their neighbors.  
 
The third option would be to allow conversions of these residences to limited business or professional uses. The 
properties would be allowed, through a Planned Use option, to be rezoned to Office and Business zoning 
classification, providing relief for certain business uses having a maximum of 1-2 employees, 3-4 parking spaces, and 
monument signage. The ultimate goal would be to assemble these parcels into a cohesive, master planned area. 
 
Future developments would be required to have the appropriate utility easements to facilitate the development of new 
infrastructure needed to service this area, cross-access easements to allow future movement between properties, 
sidewalks for pedestrian traffic along Highway 50, and landscaped buffer-yards would be required. Preservation of 
mature, healthy trees should be done where appropriate. Tree planting and landscaping along Highway 50 should 
also be a part of each project. Maintenance of the neighborhood scale and appearance of this area is critical in 
preventing the degradation of its appeal and importance to the City. Each property would need its own detention, 
unless several parcels could be developed together to obtain more consolidated detention basins. 
 
Code of Ordinances:   
The zoning hearing has been triggered due to §158.116 of the O’Fallon Code of Ordinances which requires planned 
use approval for “any proposed amendment or change in zoning, change of use from a residential to a non-residential 
use, where the subject property is adjacent to or within 250 feet of any property used for residential, public assembly, 
including religious or school purposes.” The property is adjacent to residential properties to the north, east and west. 
Due to this requirement, the applicant is requesting a change of zoning from SR-2, Single Family Residential Dwelling 
District to O-1(P) Planned Office District. The proposed rezoning is subject to Chapter 158 (Zoning) of the Code of 
Ordinance and must meet the requirements of the O-1, Office District requirements.   
 
Public Notice:  
Public Notice of this project has been fulfilled in accordance with Section 158.255 and158.256 of the City of O’Fallon 
Zoning Regulations. More specifically, the applicant has notified property owners within 250 feet of the subject 
property via certified mail of the filing of the zoning amendment. Additionally, the City has notified property owners 
within 250 feet of the subject parcel of the public hearing at least 15 days prior to the hearing and published notice of 
the public hearing in a local newspaper at least 15 days in advance. Proof of notification is on file with the City’s 
Community Development Department. 
 



  

 
C o m m u n i t y  D e v e l o p m e n t  D e p a r t m e n t  

2 5 5  S o u t h  L i n c o l n  A v e n u e ,  O ’ F a l l o n ,  I L  6 2 2 6 9    P :  6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 0 0  x  4    F : 6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 3 4   
 
 

 
Discussion Points/Issues 
Land Use & Comprehensive Plan 
The subject property is identified as Office/Service in the Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed project is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan. The subject property is located in an area of Highway 50 that has residential uses on 
the north side of Highway 50 and commercial/retail uses across Highway 50. The zoning hearing has been triggered 
due to the proposed use of an office use, located within 250 feet of a residence. CR Holland will be using one of the 
existing houses as a real estate office, a second existing house will be a rental property and the large pole barn will 
be used for the company’s storage of tools and materials for repairing and maintenance of rental property. 
 
The applicant will be remodeling the interior of the house for the use of office space.  Very little to no modifications are 
being made to the outside of the building. The applicant indicates in the narrative the potential for the office building to 
revert back to a residential rental at some point in the future.  The existing access will remain the same and there is 
an existing asphalt pad that will be striped for vehicle parking.  
 
Traffic Circulation/Parking 
Ingress and Egress:  The site will continue to provide access from existing private drive off of Highway 50.   
 
Parking:  The site plan proposes using an existing asphalted area to provide the necessary parking for the conversion 
of the main house into a real estate office.  The plan indicates a small area in which additional asphalt will be added 
to meet the required 4 spaces, including an accessible parking space.  The plan proposes curbing the new asphalt to 
detain the excess water and slowly release through a curb cut with rip rap.  
 
Sidewalks:  The current site does not have a sidewalk along Highway 50 and the petitioner is not proposing a 
sidewalk.  Since the site is converting from a residential land use to an office use in an interim basis and the property 
could be part of a future larger redevelopment, the need for a sidewalk may not be necessary at this time.  If the 
parcel would become part of a redevelopment in which the house is removed and new construction is proposed a 
sidewalk would be necessary at that time. 
 
Landscaping and Buffer Requirements 
City code requires a structural buffer of a 6-foot fence and landscaping between O-1, Office District and the MR-2, 
Multi-family Residence Dwelling District and the SR-2, Single Family Residence Dwelling District.  The plan is 
proposing a 6-foot high vinyl fence and trees along the northern property line, where the site adjoins the Eagle Ridge 
Apartments.  However, the applicant is requesting relief from the required buffer along the eastern and western 
property lines where the site adjoins SR-2 zoning. The conversion of the residence to a small office will not alter the 
use of the property greatly and there are existing evergreen trees providing a buffer between the residences to the 
east and west. 
 
Lighting 
The site is not being lighted do to the normal hours of the real estate office being 9:00AM – 5:00PM.  
 
Utilities and Drainage 
The existing public water supply will remain as previously constructed. The site is serviced by a private septic sewer 
service that is monitored by St. Clair County Health Department.  According to the County’s regulations the existing 
private sewage system can remain until such time that it is not properly functioning.  The Public Works Department 
has reviewed the application and due to the location of the City’s sanitary sewer lines, if the private septic system 
begins to fail, the owner will be responsible to tap onto the City’s sanitary sewer system.  However, the Public Works 
Department will not require the conversion to an office to tie into the City’s sanitary sewer system.  Additionally, if new 
construction of a building is proposed in the future, the site would need to tie onto the City’s sewer infrastructure.  
 



 

 
C o m m u n i t y  D e v e l o p m e n t  D e p a r t m e n t  

2 5 5  S o u t h  L i n c o l n  A v e n u e ,  O ’ F a l l o n ,  I L  6 2 2 6 9    P :  6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 0 0  x  4    F : 6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 3 4   
 
 

There is a minor addition of impervious surface are being added to meet the necessary parking demand for the real 
estate office.  The additional runoff that will be created by the additional pavement should not cause any adverse 
conditions to the site or neighboring properties.  However to address the potential increase in runoff the plan shows 
curbing the low side of the parking area with a curb cut to slowly release the stormwater.  The plan also shows the 
placement of rip rap to slow and dissipate the water coming off the impervious surface.  Staff believes this form of 
detention will suffice as the necessary detention for the minor additional impervious surface. 
 
Signage 
At this time, the applicant has indicated they would like to construct a sign on Highway 50, which would not exceed 32 
square feet and not exceed the height of 6 feet. All of the proposed dimensions of the sign would meet the 
requirements for a sign for a property converting a residence into a commercial use. 
 
Hours of Operation 
Hours of operation are proposed to be 9:00AM to 5:00PM, Monday-Friday, with appointments on Saturday. 
 
Variances 
Sidewalks: As outlined in the Comprehensive Plan, the conversion of the residential homes to small office uses along 
Highway 50 is an interim development step, with the ultimate goal to assemble a number of properties for 
redevelopment at a larger scale.  Overall, staff believes the appropriate time for the construction of the sidewalk is 
when there is a larger redevelopment project, not at the interim residential conversion stage.  
 
Landscape Buffer: The landscape plan is providing for the landscaping requirements along the northern property line, 
where there the landscaping could be preserved if the property is redeveloped as a part of a larger development.  In 
addition to the buffer required on the northern property line, a landscaped buffer is required to mitigate the impact of 
the development on adjacent residential areas to the east and west.  Instead of requiring fencing, staff recommend 
keeping the exiting landscaping in place, which includes evergreens to buffer the neighboring residential properties.  
This is consistent with the Scott Credit Union development just to the east. 
 
Review and Approval Criteria 
Section 9.050 of Article IX “Planned Uses” lists several criteria for evaluating planned uses. Evaluation of the project 
based on these factors is included under each criterion. 

1. The criteria governing the rezoning of the property and approval of site plans, as set forth in the standards 
and requirements found elsewhere in the zoning code or in other applicable law, 
The project meets all applicable zoning standards.  

2. The physical design of the proposed plan and the manner in which said design makes adequate provisions 
for public services, provides adequate control over vehicular traffic, provides for and protects designated 
common open space and park dedication, and furthers the amenities of light, air, recreation and visual 
enjoyment. 
The proposed development will not have a significant impact on traffic. 

3. The relationship and compatibility of the proposed plan to adjacent properties and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
The conversion of the residential home to an office should not negatively affect adjacent properties. The 
comprehensive plan has indicated this as an area that will slowly convert to office uses. 

4. The conformity with the standards and principles of the Comprehensive Plan and all other adopted 
regulations, including the Commercial Design Handbook dated July 6, 2009 and on file with the City Clerk. 
(Ord 3665; passed 5-3-10) 
The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the Commercial Design Handbook is not 
applicable in this case. 

5. The use(s) are designed, located and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety and welfare 
will be protected. 



 

 
C o m m u n i t y  D e v e l o p m e n t  D e p a r t m e n t  

2 5 5  S o u t h  L i n c o l n  A v e n u e ,  O ’ F a l l o n ,  I L  6 2 2 6 9    P :  6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 0 0  x  4    F : 6 1 8 . 6 2 4 . 4 5 3 4   
 
 

The proposed development is designed to be operated to protect the public health, safety and welfare. 
6. An identified community need exists for the proposed use. 

Yes, a community need exists for the proposed use. 
7. The proposed use(s) will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of the 

surrounding property, nor impair the use, enjoyment, or value of neighboring properties. 
The development will not impede the normal and orderly development and use of the surrounding property, 
nor will it impair the use, enjoyment, or value of neighboring properties. 

8. The degree of harmony between the architectural quality of the proposed building and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
The existing building is similar to and will not detract from many of the structures surrounding the property.  

9. The appropriateness of the minimum dimensions and areas of lots and yards set forth in the applicable 
zoning district regulations. 
The proposed development meets the area-bulk requirements set forth in the O-1 Office District. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the project as proposed, for a real estate office, rental property and storage for the real 
estate/construction company, with the follow conditions: 

1. A variance to the sidewalk requirement along Highway 50. 
2. A variance to allow the landscaping plan to be constructed as shown on the site plan. 
3. The use of storage associated with the Planned Use application shall be limited to the owner’s property 

maintenance business and must remain within pole barn.  No outside storage is permitted. 
4. The Planned Use approval permits a single-family residential unit and permits the office building to 

revert back to a single-family residential unit in the future. 
5. If new construction of a building is proposed in the future, the site will be required to receive a new 

planned use approval and include improvements, such as tying onto the City’s sewer infrastructure, 
provide the necessary sidewalks and all other development related improvements as defined by the 
Development Manual and Zoning Code. 

 
Attachments 
Attachment 1 – Project Application 
Attachment 2 – Zoning Map 
Attachment 3 – Land Use Map 
Attachment 4 – Site Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









HWY 50

GREEN MOUNT RD

CO
UN

TR
YS

ID
E 

LN

HILLCREST DR

PR
IN

CI
PL

E 
DR

PU
RC

HA
SE

 D
R

EA
GL

E 
RI

DG
E

UNNAMED RD

EA
GL

E 
RI

DG
E

EAGLE RIDGE

SR-3

O-1(P) SR-2
O-1 SR-2

MR-2/PUD

MR-2

MR-2

B-1

B-1(P)

O-1(P)

B-1

B-1(P)
B-1

Provided by East-West Gateway Council of Governments, imagery flown by
SURDEX

Subject
Property

0 90 180 270 36045
Feet .

P2016-01: CR Holland - Zoning Map



HWY 50

GREEN MOUNT RD

CO
UN

TR
YS

ID
E 

LN

HILLCREST DR

PR
IN

CI
PL

E 
DR

PU
RC

HA
SE

 D
R

EA
GL

E 
RI

DG
E

UNNAMED RD

EA
GL

E 
RI

DG
E

EAGLE RIDGE

Provided by East-West Gateway Council of Governments, imagery flown by
SURDEX

Subject
Property

0 90 180 270 36045
Feet .

P2016-01: CR Holland - Land Use Map

Countryside Glen
Subdivision

Eagle Ridge
Apartments





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

    To:  Mayor and City Council  

From:  Sandy Evans, Director of Finance 

  Walter Denton, City Administrator   

Date:  March 7, 2016  

Subject: Ordinance Approving Transfer of Bond Cap to SWIDA  
 
List of committees that have reviewed: Finance and Administration  
 
Background: The Southwestern Illinois Development Authority (SWIDA) requests the City 
transfer unused Illinois Private Activity Bond Allocation.  This is an industrial bond authority 
granted to Home Rule municipalities for a very limited area of Industrial Economic Authority.  If 
the city does not use or transfer the bond authority by May 1, it reverts back to the state.  As the 
City does not have a qualifying use for the authority in 2016, staff recommends it be transferred 
to SWIDA for use in our area.   This is the ninth transfer we have processed, and should the City 
have a use of this authority in the future, we would be in a better position to request help from 
SWIDA.  
 
Legal Considerations, if any: None 
 
Budget Impact: This is a very limited authority to issue a set dollar amount of industrial 
economic development bonds and has no affect on our financial status.  
 
 Staff recommendation: Recommend approval 



ORDINANCE NO.     _______     
           
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE  
TRANSFER OF VOLUME CAP IN  
CONNECTION WITH PRIVATE  
ACTIVITY BOND ISSUES, AND  
RELATED MATTERS 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, The City of O’Fallon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) is a municipality and a 
home rule unit of government under Section 6 of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the 
State of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, Section 146 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), 
provides that the Municipality has volume cap equal to $100 per resident of the Municipality in 
each calendar year, which volume cap may be allocated to certain tax-exempt private activity 
bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Private Activity Bond Allocation Act, 30 Illinois Compiled 
Statutes 2008, 345/1 et seq., as supplemented and amended (the “Act”), provides that a home 
rule unit of government may transfer its allocation of volume cap to any other home rule unit of 
government, the State of Illinois or any agency thereof or any non-home rule unit of government; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is now deemed necessary and desirable by the Municipality to transfer its 
entire volume cap allocation for calendar year 2016 to the Southwestern Illinois Development 
Authority (the “Issuer”) to be applied toward the issuance of private activity bonds by the Issuer 
(the “Bonds”) or for such other purpose permitted by this Ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of O’Fallon, Illinois, as 
follows: 

 SECTION 1. That, pursuant to Section 146 of the Code and the Act, the entire volume 
cap of the Municipality for calendar year 2016 is hereby transferred to the Issuer, which shall 
issue the Bonds using such transfer of volume cap, without any further action required on the 
part of the Municipality, and the adoption of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be an allocation 
of such volume cap to the issuance of the Bonds or such other bonds. 

 SECTION 2. That the Municipality and the Issuer shall maintain a written record of this 
Ordinance in their respective records during the term that the Bonds or any other such bonds to 
which such volume cap is allocated remain outstanding. 



 SECTION 3. That the Mayor, the City Clerk and all other proper officers, officials, 
agents and employees of the Municipality are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do 
all such acts and things and to execute all such documents and certificates as may be necessary to 
further the purposes and intent of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 4. That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable, 
and if any section, phrase or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be declared to be 
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 5. That all ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 
herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded; and that this Ordinance shall be in 
full force upon its adoption and approval.  

 
 

Presented, passed and approved by the City Council this ______ day of _______ 2016. 
 

*************************** 
 
ATTEST:      Approved by the Mayor this _____ day  

 
(seal)       of ________ 2016  

 
          
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Philip A. Goodwin, City Clerk   Gary L. Graham, Mayor 
 
   
ROLL 
CALL: 

Meile McCoskey Kueker Marsh Mouser Hagarty Roach SUB 
TOTALS 

Aye         
Nay         
Absent         

 
ROLL 
CALL: 

Drolet Bennett Holden Smallheer Gerrish
  

Albrecht Cozad SUB 
TOTALS 

SUM OF 
TOTALS 

Aye          
Nay          
Absent          

 

 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321OCRTropicalSnoHuts.docx 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
To:   Mayor Graham and City Council   
 
From:   Ted Shekell, Community Development Director 
  Walter Denton, City Administrator  

 
Date:   March 21, 2016 
 
Subject:  Special Event Permit – Happy Day Tropical Sno (MOTIONS) 
 
 
List of committees that have reviewed: The Community Development Committee meeting scheduled 
for March 14th was canceled due to budget meetings.  Chairman Albrecht and City Administrator Denton 
reviewed the requested permit and determined the requests were the same as the previous three years 
and recommended taking the SEPA straight to the council floor. 
 
Background: 
 Applicant: Dennis Cowden for Happy Day Tropical Sno 
 Locations: 600 Southview Plaza (Ace Hardware parking lot) & 6000 Old Collinsville Road (Metro 

Lock parking lot) 
 Request permission to operate: 

o Tropical Sno Concession – April 2016 through October 2016 
 Snow cone stand, freestanding ice chest, 3 picnic tables 
 Ace Hardware Site: Occupy an area next to the approved garden tent for Ace Hardware, 

on the eastern side of the parking lot. 
 Metro Lock Site: Occupy approximately 5 parking spaces along the southwest corner of 

the parking lot adjacent to Old Collinsville Road and Ashland Avenue intersection.    
 Temporary fence will be installed around the perimeter of the snow cone stand and picnic 

tables to provide separation from vehicular traffic. 
 Hours of Operation: 7 days a week from 10:00 AM to 10:00 PM, adjusted as necessary.   
 Number of Employees: 6-10 part-time employees at each site. 
 Parking will be provided on site in the paved parking lot. 
 The applicant is not requesting any special considerations from the City. 
 The applicant has provided a letter from the property owner granting permission for the Special 

Event.  
 The application is consistent with past Special Events applications. 

 
Legal Considerations, if any: None 
 
Budget Impact:  None 
 

 



 

Staff Review:  The Police and Fire Departments reviewed the request and had no issues. Staff 
recommends approval of the Special Event Permit with the following conditions: 
 

1.  Hours of operation shall not extend past 10:00 PM.   

2.  Operation shall be situated on the area designated on the site plan provided and not on 
public ROW.  A temporary picket fence shall be installed around the perimeter of the snow 
cone stand and picnic tables to provide separation from vehicular traffic. 

3.  The structure shall be anchored properly, and an electrical inspection shall be scheduled 
with the City for connection to nearby electrical source.   

4. All temporary structures and facilities must be removed within 10 calendar days of the 
expiration of the special event permit.  

 

 

 

 
 



C:\Users\mfair\OneDrive - City of O'Fallon\Documents\mfdocs\Staff Reports, Letters, and Memos 2016\160321SummerCamp.docx 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

To:   Mayor Graham and City Council   
 
From:   Ted Shekell, Community Development Director 
  Walter Denton, City Administrator 

 
Date:   March 21, 2016 
 
Subject:  Special Event Permit – O’Fallon Parks & Recs – Summer Camp Campaign (MOTION) 
 
List of committees that have reviewed: The request was submitted after a potential Community 
Development Committee could have been held on March 14th.  The Parks Department presented the 
request to the Parks Committee at their meeting on March 14th and received a positive response from 
the Committee.   
 
Background 
Applicant: Mary Jeanne Hutchison – O’Fallon Parks & Rec Department 
Event:  Parks & Rec Summer Camp Campaign 
Date/Time:  March 22nd – May 2nd 
Location: Multiple City-owned Properties 
 
Event Details 

 The Parks and Recreation Department is beginning to promote the summer camps 
offered by the department.   

 
Signage Request:  

 8 – 4-foot x 4-foot signs. 
 Locations: 

o 2 in Community Park 
o 2 in the Family Sports Park 
o 1 in the State Street Community Garden 
o 1 at the Lacrosse Fields 
o 1 in the Milburn Roundabout 
o 1 at the O’Fallon Library 

 
City Assistance Request: 

 None 
 

Legal Considerations, if any:  None. 
 
Budget Impact:  None. 
 
Staff Recommendation 

The Fire Department and Police Department had no issues with the request.  Staff recommends 
approval of the Special Event Permit. 

 









OFALLONSUMMERCAMPS.COM

PARKS
REC&

&

PA RKS
RECA

N
D

CSISUMMER 
CAMPS

register @ 



OFALLONSUMMERCAMPS.COM

PARKS
REC&

&

PA RKS
RECA

N
D

I 
SUMMER 
CAMPS

register @ 



OFALLONSUMMERCAMPS.COM

PARKS
REC&

&

PA RKS
RECA

N
D

SUMMER 
CAMPS
SLIPPERY

register @ 



school’s out for
SUMMER

OFALLONSUMMERCAMPS.COM

PARKS
REC&

&

PA RKS
RECA

N
D

CAMPS

register @ 



OFALLONSUMMERCAMPS.COM

PARKS
REC&

&

PA RKS
RECA

N
D

SUMMER 
CAMPS

LOVE

register @ 



OFALLONSUMMERCAMPS.COM

PARKS
REC&

&

PA RKS
RECA

N
D

SUMMER 
CAMPS
DISCOVER

register @ 



OFALLONSUMMERCAMPS.COM

PARKS
REC&

&

PA RKS
RECA

N
D

SUMMER 
CAMPS

register @ 

CHEER



OFALLONSUMMERCAMPS.COM

PARKS
REC&

&

PA RKS
RECA

N
D

SUMMER 
CAMPS

register @ 

MAGICAL







































     
Public Safety Committee Minutes 

March 14, 2016 5:00 p.m. 
 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Public Safety Committee of the City of O’Fallon, held 
in the Community Room, Public Safety Building, 285 N. Seven Hills Road, O’Fallon, 
Illinois, March 14, 2016.  Call to order 5:00 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
Members Present: Marsh, Hagarty, Drolet, Kueker, Roach, Smallheer 
Members Not Present:  
Staff Liaison: Chief Van Hook - OPD, Chief Brent Saunders - OFD  
Other Aldermen Present Albrecht, Bennett, Gerrish, Holden, McCoskey, Meile   
Other Persons Present Walter Denton – City Administrator; Sandy Evans – 

Finance Director; Dan Gentry – IT Manager; Pam Funk – 
Asst. City Administrator; Mark Berry – OPD; James Cavins 
– OPD; Keith Townsend – OPD; Jeff Wild – EMS; Jeremey 
Sherman – EMS; Kim Lamprecht – EMS; Daryl Ostendorf – 
OPD; Jim Blackburn – OPD; Vern Malare – Resident; Ron 
Zelms – Resident; Charles Pitts – Resident; Misty 
McDonald - OPD;  

Media Persons Present: None 
 
Chairwoman Marsh declared a quorum present and requested a Motion to approve the 
Minutes of February 8, 2016 Alderman Hagarty made a Motion to accept the minutes of 
February 8, 2016 as presented and Alderman Roach seconded the Motion. All Ayes.   
 
New Business 
Item 1.  Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide SRO Services to School 
District # 203 – Chief Van Hook stated that for the year 2015 the School Resource 
Officer (SRO) was split between all of the O’Fallon School Districts.  District # 203 has 
determined their need for a full-time SRO and has agreed to pay for 75% of the salary 
of the SRO beginning with the new school year.  This will cover the full salary of the 
officer while school is in session and the remaining 25% will be covered by the City of 
O’Fallon during the summer months. 
Action:  Request to take to council for a vote to get an approval sign the agreement 
between OTHS and the City of O’Fallon. 
Motion: A motion was made by Alderman Roach to take to council for an approval to 
sign the Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of O’Fallon and School District 
# 203 and seconded by Alderman Hagarty.  All ayes. 
Disposition:  Closed 
 
 
 
 



 2 

Item 2.  Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Dispatch Services to Shiloh 
Village Police Department – Chief Van Hook stated that this will be the 6th year that 
the City of O’Fallon has provided dispatch services to Shiloh Village.  We have an 
increase of 3% for the cost of dispatch; which will cover the 3% contractual agreement 
for dispatch salaries.  With the forced PSAP consolidation, we will have to re-negotiate a 
contract if we are awarded the consolidation. 
Action: Request to take to council for a vote to get an approval sign the 
Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Dispatch Services to Shiloh Village Police 
Department. 
Motion: A motion was made by Alderman Hagarty to take to council for an approval to 
sign the Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Dispatch Services to Shiloh Village 
Police Department and seconded by Alderman Drolet.  All ayes. 
Disposition:  Closed 
 
Item 3.  Information Technologies, Inc. Contract – Consolidation was the driving 
force to look at alternative platforms for the police department reporting system.  During 
the evaluation it was determined by Mission Critical Partners that O’Fallon and Fairview 
Heights would have to look at their reporting platforms and determine which system 
would better fit our needs.  Through the process it was determined that ITI would be 
the better choice.  ITI provides a significant cost savings and it is a great product.   
Action: Request to take to council for a vote to get an approval sign the Information 
Technologies, Inc. contract. 
Motion: A motion was made by Alderman Roach to take to council for an approval to 
sign the Information Technologies, Inc. Contract and seconded by Alderman Hagarty.  
All ayes. 
Disposition:  Closed 
 
Item 4.  EMS Department Budget – Overall budget has only increased 1.9% from FY 
16 to FY 17.  We have budget request for three capital equipment purchases.  They are 
a Zoll monitor for the Supervisor Vehicle, A Supervisor Vehicle and a stretcher which is 
required by the state of Illinois in order to meet their guidelines.  A questions was asked 
where the money from line item 4790 – Transfers goes when it is transferred.  The 
money goes toward bond payments. A second question was asked as to how much 
money does EMS recover on our ambulance runs.  It can fluctuate but around 40% of 
the EMS ambulance runs are written off as non-collectable.  We have increase our run 
rate for the first time in 12 years and that seems to help off-set some of the costs. 
Action: None 
Motion: None 
Disposition:  Closed 
 
Item 5.  Fire Department Budget – Overall Budget has only increased 1.7% from FY 
16 to FY 17.  Our budget request for capital equipment purchase are new vehicle 
($55,000) and a radio repeater ($15,000).  We are on a seven year cycle to replace 
vehicles and this vehicle has reached the end of its life cycle.  The Radio Repeater is old 
and we need a new one to broadcast a stronger signal. 
Action: None 
Motion: None 
Disposition:  Closed 



 3 

 
Item 6.  Police Department Budget – Overall budget has increased 6.2% from FY 
16 to FY 17.  We have budgeted for 2 capital equipment purchases; which are both 
vehicles.  Request replacement of tazers and portable radios for this year.  We have an 
increase in the training budget for sending an officer to the FBI academy, Bachelor’s 
Degree for two officers, Mandatory Use of Force Training, and Mandatory Narcan 
Training.  We also have increase the line item for building maintenance due to the 
building aging it is necessary to increase the maintenance costs. 
Action: None 
Motion: None 
Disposition:  Closed 
 
 
Old Business 
None 
 
Chairwoman Marsh asked if anyone had any other New Business not on the Agenda, 
hearing no New Business, Chairwoman Marsh called for a Motion to adjourn.  A Motion 
to adjourn was made by Alderman Kueker and Alderman Smallheer seconded the 
Motion.  All ayes. 

 
Meeting Adjourned: 5:54 p.m. 

   Next PS Meeting:  April 11, 2016 5:00 p.m. 
   Minutes Taken By:  Misty McDonald   



 
 
 
 

MEMO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        To:   City Clerk, Phil Goodwin 
             Finance Committee: 
             Mike Bennett, Chair 
  Jerry Albrecht – Vice Chairman 

Ned Drolet 
Bob Kueker 
Gene McCoskey 
Herb Roach 
Matt Smallheer 

     
              
From:  Patricia Diess   
Date:  March 18, 2016 
Subject:  Invoices for March 21, 2016 
Amount:  $809,733.38 
Warrant:  #346 
                 
   
 
 

Attached, for the Finance Committee’s and the City Council’s approval, is the 

bills list for March 21, 2016 in the amount of $806,481.77 as well as $2,320.08 

for Seasonal Park Payments, $330.00 for Parks Refunds, and $601.53 for Utility 

Billing Refunds.  If you have any questions or should need further information; 

please let me know.    

 
 
Copy:  Sandy Evans 
  City Council 
 Mayor Graham 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF O’FALLON 
 

 
BILL LIST FOR March 21, 2016 

Warrant #346 
   
  

The Mayor and the City Council of the City of O'Fallon, Illinois, hereby approve the 

attached list of bills and authorize the Director of Finance to forward payment on the  

22nd of March, 2016.  The Office of Finance is hereby authorized to borrow from any 

fund having an excess cash balance to pay the bills for any fund having a cash deficit. 

 
 
 
        ________________________ 
        Gary Graham, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Philip Goodwin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



1

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43

A B C D E

Invoice Due Date.Date mm-dd-yyyy 03/22/2016

Invoice Amount
Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Description Date mm-dd-yyyy Total

Absopure Water Co 55583644 Strts-Lease Payment 02/29/2016 $5.00
55590243 WWTP-Lease Payment 02/29/2016 $5.00

Absopure Water Co Total $10.00
Ace Hardware of O'Fallon 67262 Wtr-Safety Spray Paint 02/03/2016 $47.88

67369 Strts-Connectors 02/09/2016 $7.07
67406 Swr-Glue, Rstp Spray Paint 02/11/2016 $7.48
67420 Swr-Carwax Seal, Carwax Meguiar's 02/11/2016 $19.98
67536 Wtr-Rust Remover, Roope, Hack Blades, Sump Pump, Etc 02/17/2016 $153.36
67539 Wtr-Adapters, Coupling, Conduit, Pipe 02/17/2016 $16.45
67651 Swr-Asst'd Fasteners 02/22/2016 $4.17
67666 Wtr-Spray Paint 02/23/2016 $83.79
67721 Strts-Crimp Plug, Tool Crimper 02/25/2016 $34.98
67722 Strts-Propane Tank Refill 02/25/2016 $53.98
67751 WWTP-Poly Tarp, Rope 02/26/2016 $26.97
67786 WWTP-Brass Hose w/Shutoff 02/29/2016 $14.99
67801 Strts-Simple Green Cleaner, Asst'd Fasteners 02/29/2016 $25.08
PW-Feb2016-Disc PW-February 2016 Discount 02/29/2016 -$25.08

Ace Hardware of O'Fallon Total $471.10
Airgas USA LLC 9048662265 EMS-Oxygen 02/24/2016 $331.83

Airgas USA LLC Total $331.83
Ameren Illinois 0201-030116 Strts-Street Lighting Charges 03/07/2016 $44.97

Ameren Illinois Total $44.97
AmerenIP 0120-021716 Monthly Utilities 03/07/2016 $62,310.54

AmerenIP Total $62,310.54
Anderson Hospital 20609 EMS-Heartsave CPR AED Cards 02/08/2016 $50.00

Anderson Hospital Total $50.00
Anderson Pest Solutions 3699715 Sportspark-Qtrly Pest Control 02/01/2016 $54.60

3699737 Lib,Dep,CH,BankAnnex-Qtrly Pest Control 02/01/2016 $227.33
3700009 WWTP-Qtrly Pest Control 02/01/2016 $110.00
3700305 Swr-Monthly Pest Control 02/01/2016 $54.00

Anderson Pest Solutions Total $445.93
Aramark Uniform Services 452-0836589 PD/EMS-Mat Service 03/03/2016 $37.20

Aramark Uniform Services Total $37.20
AT&T 618628691702-16 618 628-6917 330 7 02/04/2016 $80.00

9424670308 171-796-1027 322 02/28/2016 $1,907.00
AT&T Total $1,987.00

Atkins, Rudi 030916 Reimb/CDL Drivers License 03/09/2016 $60.00
Atkins, Rudi Total $60.00

AP Warrant FY 2016



2

44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86

A B C D E
Auffenberg Dealer Group 80840 Strts-Wheel Assy 03/09/2016 $174.28

80867 Swr-Hose Assy 03/10/2016 $90.32
Auffenberg Dealer Group Total $264.60

B & P Trophy House 6060 EMS-Engraved Plates for Employee of the Year 02/26/2016 $20.00
B & P Trophy House Total $20.00

B C Signs 24149 Fac-Sprinkler Room Signs 03/04/2016 $40.00
24153 Sportspark-Outfield Distance Markers 03/03/2016 $350.00

B C Signs Total $390.00
BagSpot Pet Waste Solutions 2201 Pks/Rec-RockSprings Dog Waste Bags 03/04/2016 $191.77

BagSpot Pet Waste Solutions Total $191.77
Balke Brown Associates 031416 TIF 3 - Lakeside Drainage Payout 03/14/2016 $1,977.50

Balke Brown Associates Total $1,977.50
Bank of O'Fallon 032716 FD-Loan 4950189010 Pmt 03/27/2016 $19,850.82

Bank of O'Fallon Total $19,850.82
Banner Fire Equip Inc 441582 FD-Pull Only Lock Pin Assy 03/07/2016 $80.98

Banner Fire Equip Inc Total $80.98
Batteries Plus Bulbs 378-307349 CityHall-Batteries 03/01/2016 $59.40

378-307399 Dep,PW-Batteries 03/02/2016 $59.70
Batteries Plus Bulbs Total $119.10

Beacon Athletics 453513-IN Pks/Rec-Baseball Field Equip 02/23/2016 $2,096.00
453758-IN Sportspark-Blue Quad Field #1 Backstop Pads 02/29/2016 $788.00

Beacon Athletics Total $2,884.00
Bel-O Cooling & Heating Inc 86772 Pks/Rec-Heat/Air Repair, Replace Unit PM Shed & Community Pk 02/18/2016 $1,296.00

86837 FD-Install Mini Split, HVAC Unit O Station #2 02/29/2016 $2,195.00
86882 Sportspark-Diagnostics, 3 Pole Contactor, Labor 02/29/2016 $276.00

Bel-O Cooling & Heating Inc Total $3,767.00
Ben Meadows Company SI02271899 Pks/Rec-Arbortie Guying Material (Tree Staking) 02/22/2016 $73.95

Ben Meadows Company Total $73.95
Benchmark Title Co LLC 10033 St E's - Commercial Informational Commitment 03/10/2016 $300.00

10036 St E's - Commercial Informational Commitment 03/11/2016 $250.00
10039 St E's - Commercial Informational Commitment 03/11/2016 $312.00
10053 St E's - Commercial Informational Commitment 03/11/2016 $312.00
9985 St E's - Commercial Informational Commitment 03/07/2016 $288.00
9988 St E's - Commercial Informational Commitment 03/07/2016 $293.00
9997 St E's - Commercial Informational Commitment 03/08/2016 $500.00

Benchmark Title Co LLC Total $2,255.00
BG Services Inc 192995-IN FD-All Weather DFC w/Lubricity 03/03/2016 $138.00

BG Services Inc Total $138.00
Bound Tree Medical LLC 82066357 EMS-Medical Supplies 02/23/2016 $532.03

82067858 EMS-Medical Supplies 02/25/2016 $54.24
Bound Tree Medical LLC Total $586.27

Bruckert, Gruenke & Long PC 5294 CDD-Ladies Emporium 03/02/2016 $67.50
5295 Central Park TIF 03/02/2016 $91.38



3

87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129

A B C D E
Bruckert, Gruenke & Long PC 5296 Admin-Electric Aggregation 03/02/2016 $360.00

5297 Greenmount Medical Campus TIF 03/02/2016 $607.50
Bruckert, Gruenke & Long PC Total $1,126.38

BSN Sports Collegiate Pacific 97696867 Pks/Rec,Sportspark-Pitching Rubber, Spikes for End Spiked Rubber 03/02/2016 $999.17
97696869 Pks/Rec-Basketball Scoreboards 03/02/2016 $524.99

BSN Sports Collegiate Pacific Total $1,524.16
Buckeye Cleaning Center 945285 Pks/Rec-Trash Can Liners 02/16/2016 $66.96

946842 Pks/Rec-PMF Entrance Mats 02/23/2016 $307.20
948232 Sportspark-Trash Can Liners 03/01/2016 $245.52
949254 Pks/Rec-Entrance Mats/Carpet 03/07/2016 $313.60

Buckeye Cleaning Center Total $933.28
Butler Supply Co 12299604 FD-Bulbs 03/01/2016 $97.68

12300957 Strts,Wtr-Lens 03/02/2016 $52.50
12302331 Wtr-PVC Glue, Male Adapter, Locknut, Insulating Bushing, Elbow 03/03/2016 $48.97
12303640 Vets Monument-Freight 03/04/2016 $9.54
12306370 Vets Monument-Retrofit Lamp 02/08/2016 $60.00
12306371 WWTP-Outlet Box, Single Gang In-Use Cover 03/08/2016 $17.39
12307689 WWTP-Clarifiers 03/09/2016 $930.56

Butler Supply Co Total $1,216.64
Charter Communications 104221-022316 FD-TV Service 02/23/2016 $54.58

76569-030116 FD-TV Service 03/01/2016 $38.39
99975-030116 Wtr-TV Service 03/01/2016 $14.76

Charter Communications Total $107.73
Christ Truck Svc Inc 15907 Strts-Dirt Loads 02/08/2016 $250.00

15920 Strts-Rock 02/18/2016 $164.94
Christ Truck Svc Inc Total $414.94

Cintas Corporation 731435102 Fire Station 4 Mat Service 02/17/2016 $59.17
731438153 Fac-Mats 02/24/2016 $59.17
731441209 Fire Station 4 - Mat Service 03/02/2016 $59.17

Cintas Corporation Total $177.51
Clemons, Ebony 022916 PD-Meal Expenses for Dispatch Conference 02/29/2016 $56.50

Clemons, Ebony Total $56.50
Cletes Auto Repair 85001 EMS-Tow on 2013 Ford F-450 Super Duty 6.7 02/05/2016 $150.00

Cletes Auto Repair Total $150.00
Commerce Bank AD022616-1 Pks/Rec-IPRA Conference Expenses 01/30/2016 $348.56

AD022616-2 Pks/Rec, Econ Dev-Magic Mouse, Keyboard, Fitbits 02/02/2016 $429.96
AD022616-3 Pks/Rec-Survey Monkey 02/03/2016 $26.00
AD022616-4 Pks/Rec-Gift Cards 02/05/2016 $1,950.00
AD022616-5 Pks/Rec-Adobe Creative 02/11/2016 $29.99
AD022616-6 Pks/Rec-Supplies 02/11/2016 $68.74
AD022616-7 Pks/Rec-Office Supplies 02/25/2016 $99.00
BS022616-1 FD-Training Materials 01/27/2016 $1,143.57
BS022616-2 FD-Training Materials 01/30/2016 $165.53



4

130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172

A B C D E
BS022616-3 FD-DVD Rewriters, Network BackUp, Outlet, External Double Layers 02/03/2016 $3,914.86
BS022616-4 FD-Office Supplies 02/03/2016 $75.47
BS022616-5 FD-Lunch for Executive Fire Board Meeting 02/09/2016 $67.43
BS022616-6 FD-Extension Cord, Clips, Supplies 02/21/2016 $40.24
BS022616-7 FD-Conference Meals 02/22/2016 $62.06
BS022616-8 FD-Conference Lunch 02/25/2016 $37.98
CS022616-1 FD-Hammer Drill Bit, Scotch Extreme 01/29/2016 $41.33
CS022616-2 FD-Power Washer 02/10/2016 $159.00
CS022616-3 CDD-NFPA 13 Handbook 02/18/2016 $159.35
DB022616-1 Eng-UWEX Registrations 02/09/2016 $1,990.00
DG022616-1 PW-AutoCAD Light for Dwayne 01/27/2016 $382.50
DG022616-2 IT-Callout Svcs for IT Staff 02/11/2016 $108.00
DG022616-3 IT-Auto Renewal Amazon Prime Membership 02/13/2016 $99.00
JC022616-1 PD-Print Cartridges for Major Case Squad 02/11/2016 $134.34
JF022616-1 Pks/Rec-Sportspark-Tng Materials, Cork Bulletin Board, ScanDisk 02/02/2016 $213.95
JF022616-2 Pks/Rec-Uniform 02/03/2016 $37.18
JF022616-3 Pks/Rec-GIS Training (Natural Resource Modeling) 02/03/2016 $913.20
JS022616-1 CDD-Shoe Cleaner 02/17/2016 $63.25
JS022616-2 CDD-Shoe Cover 02/18/2016 $54.86
JS022616-3 CDD-IFC Study Companion 02/19/2016 $54.00
MAF022616-1 Admin-Municipal Clerks of IL 01/30/2016 $338.78
MAF022616-2 Admin-Conference Airfare 02/24/2016 $252.46
MB022616-1 PD-FBI Conference Registration 01/27/2016 $475.00
MB022616-2 PD-Headset, Spare Remote 02/19/2016 $240.56
MJH022616-1 Pks/Rec-IPRA Conference 01/31/2016 $979.02
MJH022616-2 Pks/Rec-Pizza for Budget Meeting 02/02/2016 $33.70
MJH022616-3 Pks/Rec-Budget Supplies 02/01/2016 $87.47
MJH022616-4 Pks/Rec-Worldwide Ticketcraft 02/05/2016 $212.93
MJH022616-5 Pks/Rec-Active Software Conf 02/24/2016 $17.88
MK022616-1 Lib-Shipping 01/26/2016 $151.82
MK022616-2 Lib-Office Supplies 02/08/2016 $59.96
MK022616-3 Lib-Large Stamp 02/11/2016 $40.35
MK022616-4 Lib-Legislative Breakfasts 02/12/2016 $50.00
MK022616-5 Lib-Refreshments for MEPL Mtg 02/25/2016 $33.54
MS022616-1 Pks/Rec,Sportspark,Cemetery-Training Registrations 02/04/2016 $450.00
MS022616-1 Lib Lib-Backup Service 02/01/2016 $5.00
MS022616-2 Pks/Rec-Fuel 02/04/2016 $65.59
MS022616-2 Lib Lib-Computer Service 02/03/2016 $1,356.00
MS022616-3 Pks/Rec-End of Training Lunch & Staff Meet for Crew Leaders 02/12/2016 $41.50
MS022616-3 Lib Lib-Luncheon Mtg 02/09/2016 $32.95
MS022616-4 Lib Lib-Luncheon Mtg 02/15/2016 $16.82
MS022616-5 Lib Lib-Luncheon Mtg 02/22/2016 $37.44
NM022616-1 Pks/Rec-IPRA Conference Expenses 01/30/2016 $423.51



5

173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215

A B C D E
NM022616-2 Pks/Rec-Bowling 02/12/2016 $159.00
NM022616-3 Pks/Rec-Illinois Youth Soccer 02/18/2016 $500.00
OPD022616-1 PD-2016 Women in Criminal Justice Conference Registration 02/10/2016 $135.00
PF022616-1 EconDev-ILCMA Winter Conf 02/06/2016 $311.36
PF022616-2 EconDev-FitBits for Program 02/17/2016 $449.97
PPC022616-1 Pks/Rec-Basketball Wet Mop 01/25/2016 $114.23
PPC022616-2 Pks/Rec-IPRA Conference Expenses 01/30/2016 $24.09
PPC022616-3 Pks/Rec-Soft Drinks for Kixx Trivia 02/05/2016 $25.56
PPC022616-4 Pks/Rec-Glee Camp Supplies 02/20/2016 $22.43
PPC022616-5 Pks/Rec-Glee Camp Supplies 02/20/2016 $78.85
PPC022616-6 Pks/Rec-Glee Camp Supplies 02/20/2016 $20.59
PPC022616-7 Pks/Rec-Active Software Conf 02/24/2016 $41.88
PPC022616-8 Pks/Rec-Refund for Dupl Charge 02/23/2016 -$514.35
RJ022616-1 Lib-12201-12400 Subscribers 01/26/2016 $110.75
RJ022616-2 CD Wall Mount, Business Card Holders, Poster Frames 01/28/2016 $57.92
RJ022616-3 Lib-Netflix Subscription 01/29/2016 $11.99
RJ022616-4 Lib-Program Pizza 02/02/2016 $51.29
RJ022616-5 Lib-Legislative Breakfast 02/04/2016 $25.00
RJ022616-6 Lib-One Time Key Dock 02/05/2016 $129.59
RJ022616-7 Lib-Program Refreshments 02/16/2016 $30.52
RJ022616-8 lib-materials 02/09/2016 $234.81
RJ022616-9 Lib-Storage Boxes 02/18/2016 $67.26
SE022616-1 Admin-Wall St Journal 02/07/2016 $32.99
SE022616-2 Admin-Bureau of Census 02/12/2016 $200.00
SE022616-3 Admin-GFOA Airfare 02/17/2016 $417.96
SE022616-4 Illinois TIF Training 02/25/2016 $600.00
SG022616-1 Pks/Rec-Light Bulbs, Wet Floor Signs, Uniform 02/02/2016 $111.99
TC022616-1 FD-Otterbox 02/16/2016 $143.94
TC022616-2 FD-iPad Air 2, OtterBoxes, Apple Care + for iPad 02/16/2016 $2,656.87
TC022616-3 FD-Conference Meals 02/23/2016 $77.74
TR022616-1 Lib-Supplies for Lego Club/Star Wars Training 02/17/2016 $88.08
TR022616-2 Lib-Toys 01/31/2016 $28.20
TR022616-3 Lib-Boards & Builds STEM Program 02/06/2016 $44.76
TR022616-4 Lib-Library Assn Membership 02/12/2016 $150.00
TR022616-5 Lib-Buxiness Cards 02/20/2016 $37.68
TR022616-6 Lib-Poster Frames 02/24/2016 $79.25
TR022616-7 Lib-Program Material 02/24/2016 $9.98
TS022616-1 CDD-IAHPC Memberships 01/29/2016 $50.00
TS022616-2 CDD-VGA Adapter, HDMI Adapter, Bluetooth Mouse, Sleeve 02/24/2016 $134.96
WD022616-1 EconDev-O'Fallon Rotary Club 01/26/2016 $214.00
WD022616-2 EconDev-ILCMA Winter Conference 02/06/2016 $371.41
WD022616-3 CDD-Luncheon Meeting 02/08/2016 $100.05
WD022616-4 EconDev-O'Fallon Weekly Subscription 02/19/2016 $36.00



6

216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258

A B C D E
Commerce Bank WD022616-5 EconDev-ICMA Online 02/25/2016 $149.00

Commerce Bank Total $26,094.23
Community Wholesale Tire Inc 8793816 Strts-Tires 03/06/2016 $332.44

8799168 Strts-Tires 03/09/2016 $1,282.24
Community Wholesale Tire Inc Total $1,614.68

Contemporary Life Saving Tng LLC 1013830 FD-Medical Supplies 03/02/2016 $242.00
1013834 FD-Instructor Manual, eBook 03/02/2016 $79.90

Contemporary Life Saving Tng LLC Total $321.90
Cunningham, Vogel & Rost PC 89817 Correspond re Towers; Call to City 02/29/2016 $65.00

Cunningham, Vogel & Rost PC Total $65.00
Custom Screen Printing Inc 30208 Pks/Rec,Sportspark-Uniform Hats 02/17/2016 $402.00

Custom Screen Printing Inc Total $402.00
Datamax Office Systems 1117463 Contract CN6537-01 03/07/2016 $7.58

1118966 Contract CN1970-01 03/08/2016 $228.71
Datamax Office Systems Total $236.29

Datamax STL Leasing L306309030 IT Plotter Lease 03/05/2016 $254.56
L403083016 Lease 4-03083 03/15/2016 $169.35

Datamax STL Leasing Total $423.91
Dave Schmidt Truck Svc P43771 FD-Check Valve, Oil 03/10/2016 $140.96

P43790 Strts-Gasket, Clamps 03/14/2016 $52.76
T80675 PD-Svc on 2013 Ford F450, Unit 4355 02/05/2016 $8,926.76
T80725 EMS-Svc on 2008 Ford F450 02/12/2016 $350.18
T80808 EMS-Svc on 2013 International, Unit 4335 02/25/2016 $843.42

Dave Schmidt Truck Svc Total $10,314.08
Davis, Thomas 031416 Reimb/Tuition & Book Costs 03/14/2016 $819.00

Davis, Thomas Total $819.00
DELL XJWM26N96 Employee Computer Procurement/Berkel, Tim 02/19/2016 $1,308.41

XJWMJ8K27 Employee Computer Procurement/Hebel, Alan 02/22/2016 $937.12
DELL Total $2,245.53

Dutch Hollow Janitor 197307 CityHall-Bath Tissue, Paper Towels 03/03/2016 $134.07
Dutch Hollow Janitor Total $134.07

EJ Equipment Inc W00103 Swr-Tighten Pump Belts, Instal Boom Arm Pads, Adj Wtr Pump Pads 03/04/2016 $243.41
W00794 Swr- Camera, Install 02/24/2016 $3,443.93

EJ Equipment Inc Total $3,687.34
Electrico Inc 700-6389 Strts-Street Light Maint 12/30/2015 $50.01

700-6409 Strts-Street Lighting Charges 01/13/2016 $200.01
Electrico Inc Total $250.02

Elite Ft Incorporated 629 Pks/Rec-Kixx Jr Program (25 @ $80 ea 70/20 Split) 03/07/2016 $1,400.00
Elite Ft Incorporated Total $1,400.00

ESRI 93102434 Annual GeoEvent Software License 02/29/2016 $3,000.00
ESRI Total $3,000.00

Express Medical Care LLC 3879 Pks/Rec-Physical/Pelley, Kristen 02/13/2016 $226.00
Express Medical Care LLC Total $226.00



7

259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301

A B C D E
Fairchild, David 031116 Pks/Rec-Glee Camp Production (Sound, Lights and Tech Spt) 03/11/2016 $50.00

Fairchild, David Total $50.00
Fastenal Company ILBEL71414 PW-Gloves, Sharpies, Eyewear 03/03/2016 $302.65

ILBEL71612 PW-Duct Tape, Gloves, Safety Glasses 03/03/2016 $129.95
ILBEL71670 PW-Gloves, Foam 03/04/2016 $120.53

Fastenal Company Total $553.13
Fire Apparatus & Supply Team 16-92 FD-Leather Bunker Boots 03/08/2016 $4,160.00

16-96 FD-Female Rigid/Male Rigid Rocker Lug 03/09/2016 $26.22
Fire Apparatus & Supply Team Total $4,186.22

FireCompanies.com 13653-07 FD-First Due Package 03/01/2016 $239.97
FireCompanies.com Total $239.97

Four Seasons Dist 48982 Sportspark-Food Concessions 03/10/2016 $3,617.43
Four Seasons Dist Total $3,617.43

Fource Group, The 1 Pks/Rec-Summer Camp Campaign 02/25/2016 $3,000.00
Fource Group, The Total $3,000.00

France Mechanical Corp 12667 PD/EMS-Repl all Filters and Belts, Checked Operation of Systems 02/24/2016 $1,898.57
France Mechanical Corp Total $1,898.57

Funk, Dale M 16-216 PD-Public Safety Employment Benefits Act 02/25/2016 $262.50
Traffic #16-139 PD-Traffic/Misdemeanor Disposition 03/01/2016 $225.00

Funk, Dale M Total $487.50
Fussell, Lloyd W 1029-112815 Reimb/Cell Phone Charges 11/28/2015 $30.00

1129-122815 Reimb/Cell Phone Charges 12/28/2015 $30.00
1229-012816 Reimb/Cell Phone Charges 01/28/2016 $30.00

Fussell, Lloyd W Total $90.00
Garnto, Sterling 65614 Reimb/Carden Club Yard Mulch Bags 03/12/2016 $29.90

Garnto, Sterling Total $29.90
Gempler's SI02286692 Pks/Rec-Ear Plugs, Tool Rack, Folding Knife, Glove Disp, Rake, B 02/29/2016 $226.84

Gempler's Total $226.84
Glen Ed Soccer Club 020916-U8B Pks/Rec-U8B Tournament 02/09/2016 $475.00

022516-U9B Pks/Rec-U9B Tournament/Delucio 02/25/2016 $375.00
022616-U12B Pks/Rec-U12B Tournament 02/26/2016 $625.00
022916-U10G Pks/Rec-U10G Tournament 02/29/2016 $475.00

Glen Ed Soccer Club Total $1,950.00
Gonzalez Companies LLC 4568 Strts-PSB Detention Pond, Howard Pl and Smiley Drainage 02/29/2016 $768.00

4569 Strts-Westbrook Stormwater Improvements Phase 1 02/29/2016 $4,385.25
Gonzalez Companies LLC Total $5,153.25

Gonzalez Office Products 200325214-1 PD/EMS-Office Supplies 03/02/2016 $43.00
200327545-1 Admin-Office SUppllies 02/08/2016 $65.50
200327652-1 CDD-Office Supplied 03/08/2016 $113.88
200329912-1 Admin-Office Supplies 03/11/2016 $23.04

Gonzalez Office Products Total $245.42
Goodall Truck Testing 400 Strts-Unit #19 Safety Inspection 03/14/2016 $33.00

Goodall Truck Testing Total $33.00



8

302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344

A B C D E
Grainger 9043154351 Wtr-Funnel, Drum, w/Screen 03/03/2016 $54.80

Grainger Total $54.80
Grand Rental Station 63045 Strts-Concrete Planer, Carbide Cutter Drum, Grease Gun 02/22/2016 $220.00

Grand Rental Station Total $220.00
Green Machine Lawn & Landscaping, The 031516-#2 Strts,FD,Lib-Weed Removal/Spray Application, Fert & Pre-Emerge 02/29/2016 $2,193.50

Green Machine Lawn & Landscaping, The Total $2,193.50
H & G/Schultz Door 247299 WWTP-Comm Module Cover, Reader, Level, Etc 03/07/2016 $2,453.00

H & G/Schultz Door Total $2,453.00
Hawkins Inc 3842497 RI Wtr-Azone 15 - EPA Reg No 7870-5 02/18/2016 $2,853.30

Hawkins Inc Total $2,853.30
HD Supply Waterworks Ltd E902605 Wtr-Red Cut-away Mueller Hydrant 03/09/2016 $2,750.00

F184377 Wtr-Valve Box Adapter w/Lid 03/01/2016 $33.39
F196741 Strts-ADS Pipe 03/03/2016 $975.00
F198829 Swr-PVC Swr Pipe 03/03/2016 $72.24
F205862 Swr-PVC Swr Pipes 03/04/2016 $72.24
F214600 Wtr-Broken Fire Hydrant Replaced 03/08/2016 $4,025.00

HD Supply Waterworks Ltd Total $7,927.87
Henry, Bill Feb 2016 February 2016 Mileage Reimb 03/01/2016 $101.52

Henry, Bill Total $101.52
Heros in Style 146882 EMS-Uniforms/Verner, J 02/20/2016 $374.07

147106 FD-Uniform/Brantley, N 02/26/2016 $143.95
147117 PD-Uniforms/Mojzis, M 02/27/2016 $253.90
147221 FD-Uniforms 03/02/2016 $79.45
147355 FD-Uniforms/Saunders, B 03/04/2016 $209.97
147446 FD-Uniforms/Hubbard, D 03/07/2016 $236.98
147483 FD-Uniforms/Hubbard, S 03/08/2016 $874.12

Heros in Style Total $2,172.44
HMG Engineers Inc 6547.1-109 Swr-West Washington St Swr Replacement 03/02/2016 $4,773.09

7308-101 WWTP-2016 Shiloh Wastewater Rate & Surcharges Update 03/02/2016 $495.00
HMG Engineers Inc Total $5,268.09

Home Depot, The 1010480 Cemetery-General Contractor Tape Measure 02/17/2016 $14.97
1010490 Sportspark-Mow Crew Tools 02/17/2016 $361.04
10534 Sportspark-Horticulture Supplies 02/18/2016 $51.06
10615 Pks/Rec-Seasonal Tool Boxes 02/18/2016 $458.07
15350 Sportspark-Rollers, Paint Supplies 02/08/2016 $133.78
2010396 Pks/Rec-Poplar Board 02/16/2016 $49.50
2011377 Strts-Wood Shovel, Transfer Shovel, Rake, Digging Shovel 02/26/2016 $242.18
3011243 Pks/Rec-Toro Zero Turn Supplles 02/25/2016 $4.85
5010073 Lib-Mini Hacksaw, Knife 02/13/2016 $15.94
5011031 Pks/Rec-Stakes, Concrete Mix 02/23/2016 $54.78
6010006 Pks/Rec-Horticulture Tools 02/12/2016 $79.28
6022519 Pks/Rec-Hinges, Bits for Door Repair 02/22/2016 $24.88
7015696 Pks/Rec-Seasonal Horticultural Tools 02/11/2016 $195.61



9

345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387

A B C D E
Home Depot, The 8191524 EMS-Refrigerator Filters 02/10/2016 $29.95

9010673 Pks/Rec-Horticulture Supplies 02/19/2016 $287.69
Home Depot, The Total $2,003.58

Hughes Customat Inc 61017 Wtr,Strts-Mat Service 03/08/2016 $44.61
61018 IT-Mat Service 03/08/2016 $16.16
61021 Swr-Mat Service 03/08/2016 $36.81

Hughes Customat Inc Total $97.58
Huntleigh McGehee 656061 FD-Inland Marine (Excess) Coverage 03/01/2016 $5,976.00

656062 FD-Service Fee 03/01/2016 $250.00
Huntleigh McGehee Total $6,226.00

IFSAP 031616 FD-Membership Application 03/16/2016 $45.00
IFSAP Total $45.00

IL American Water Co 0302-040116 FD,EMS-Monthly Utilities 03/02/2016 $25.30
IL American Water Co Total $25.30

Illinois Central School Bus 390-00735 Pks/Rec-Commercial Charter Revenue to St Clair Bowl 02/29/2016 $180.00
Illinois Central School Bus Total $180.00

Jack Schmitt Chevrolet 320254 Wtr-05 Chev 1/2 Ton Assessment 03/08/2016 $68.75
Jack Schmitt Chevrolet Total $68.75

Jack Schmitt Premium Carwash CW1282016 FD,EMS-Car Washes 01/28/2016 $25.18
CW2032016 FD,PD-Car Washes 02/03/2016 $19.78
CW2042016 PD-Car Wash 02/04/2016 $8.09
CW2052016 PD-Car Wash 02/05/2016 $8.09
CW2102016 EMS-Car Wash 02/10/2016 $8.09
CW2132016 PD-Car Washes 02/13/2016 $16.18
CW2172016 PD,CDD-Car Washes 02/17/2016 $62.94
CW2182016 PD-Car Wash 02/18/2016 $8.09
CW2192016 PD-Car Wash 02/19/2016 $8.09
CW2262016 FD,PD-Car Washes 02/26/2016 $23.38
CW2292016 PD-Car Wash 02/29/2016 $8.09

Jack Schmitt Premium Carwash Total $196.00
Jellen, Ben 022916 Pks/Rec-Garden Club Speakers Program 02/29/2016 $50.00

Jellen, Ben Total $50.00
Johnny Macs Sporting Goods 419206/1 Sportspark-Softballs 03/10/2016 $2,455.20

Johnny Macs Sporting Goods Total $2,455.20
Johnson, Michelle L 6001C Pks/Rec-Zumba 03/14/2016 $172.60

6002 Pks/Rec-Zumba 03/14/2016 $88.20
Johnson, Michelle L Total $260.80

Kienstra Precast LLC 2016-404 Strts-Storm Manholes, Joint Sealant 02/19/2016 $3,120.00
2016-412 Strts-Storm Manhole #1 for Rutherford Ridge Stormwater Repair 02/19/2016 $1,040.00
2016-467 Strts-Risers, Joint Sealant 02/26/2016 $320.00

Kienstra Precast LLC Total $4,480.00
Knox Company, The 1581488-2 PD-Boxes 03/03/2016 $1,198.00

Knox Company, The Total $1,198.00



10

388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430

A B C D E
Kombrink, Karl FY16-HS FY2016 Healthy Spending Reimb 03/01/2016 $75.00

Kombrink, Karl Total $75.00
Kone Inc 949231156 CityHall-Elevator Maint (3/1-5/31/16) 03/01/2016 $453.39

Kone Inc Total $453.39
Korte & Luitjohn Construction 4 Swr-Contract Work 02/23/2016 $44,631.00

Korte & Luitjohn Construction Total $44,631.00
Krebs Associates LLC, Glen 16-0204 Wtr/Swr-Past Due Notice Sheets 03/02/2016 $1,597.15

16-0205 Wtr/Swr-Window Envelopes 03/05/2016 $3,122.50
16-0206 Wtr/Swr-Envelopes 03/03/2016 $2,798.25
16-0207 Wtr/Swr-Envelopes 03/02/2016 $89.38

Krebs Associates LLC, Glen Total $7,607.28
Kruep Const Inc 031116 Pks/Rec-Foundation & Sidewalks for Park Bathrooms 03/11/2016 $18,983.00

Kruep Const Inc Total $18,983.00
L W Contractors Inc 13953 Strts-Bristlecone St Sewer Repl 02/29/2016 $5,979.40

13954 Wtr-Rieder Rd to Hageman Watermain Extension 02/29/2016 $26,135.00
13955 Strts-Rutherford Ridge Stormwater Repair 02/29/2016 $12,888.25
13956 Strts-Lake Point Detention Pond 02/29/2016 $5,864.00
13958 Strts-530 Juniper St Swr Repair 02/29/2016 $2,504.00

L W Contractors Inc Total $53,370.65
Lebanon-Seibert Electric LLC 4590 Wtr-Oil Filters 03/03/2016 $15.00

Lebanon-Seibert Electric LLC Total $15.00
Lickenbrock & Sons Inc 43708 Wtr-Red Trailer Svc Parts 03/10/2016 $120.82

43715 Strts-Shelves, Iron Lung 03/11/2016 $193.67
Lickenbrock & Sons Inc Total $314.49

Line-X of Southwest Illinois 12322 Sportspark, Pks/Rec-2016 F-450 Bed Lining 02/25/2016 $1,400.00
Line-X of Southwest Illinois Total $1,400.00

Lowenbaum Partnership LLC 80230 EMS-AFSCME Issues 02/29/2016 $2,730.00
80231 EMS-AFSCME Issues 02/29/2016 $255.00

Lowenbaum Partnership LLC Total $2,985.00
MAC Electric Inc 3795 Fac-Labor, Hard Wire Door Bell and Controls on Entrance Doors 03/04/2016 $208.58

3796 Fac-Labor, Cut and Install Metal Place for Old Panel 03/04/2016 $1,747.93
3797 Pks/Rec-Install Heat Tape in Maint Shed, Chg FGCI 03/03/2016 $639.70
3803 Depot-Install GFCI in Men's Room 03/04/2016 $95.00

MAC Electric Inc Total $2,691.21
Maxson Services 7782 PD-Replace Lav Faucet in Ladies Room 02/17/2016 $341.89

9279 Pks/Rec-Sink Repair/Repl, Existing Leak & Crack 03/04/2016 $1,890.00
Maxson Services Total $2,231.89

Mediclaims Inc 16-17754 EMS-Percentage of Receipts 01/31/2016 $5,557.31
Mediclaims Inc Total $5,557.31

Menard Inc 031416 TIF 3-Menard's Development Costs 03/14/2016 $258,410.33
95786 Wtr-Master Measurer, Safetu Blue Prof Spray, Orange Prog Spray 03/02/2016 $128.80
95791 Strts-Temp Fencing 03/02/2016 $124.76
96748 Strts-Welded Wire, Steel Fence U Post 03/14/2016 $143.88



11

431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473

A B C D E
Menard Inc Total $258,807.77

Metro East Music Together 6046-6047 Pks/Rec-Classes 03/15/2016 $1,637.40
Metro East Music Together Total $1,637.40

Metro Lock & Security 144929 Pks/Rec-Single Sided Key, Svc Trip Chg, Labor 02/22/2016 $139.00
Metro Lock & Security Total $139.00

Meurer Brothers Inc 71660 Strts-Hazard Street Tree Removal 12/30/2015 $900.00
Meurer Brothers Inc Total $900.00

Microbiologics Inc 680587 Wtr-Proteus Mirabilis 03/01/2016 $1,314.44
Microbiologics Inc Total $1,314.44

Midwest Meter Inc 75411-IN Wtr-Encoder ERT 02/29/2016 $29,600.00
Midwest Meter Inc Total $29,600.00

Midwest Municipal Supply 150332 Strts-Heavy Wall Pipe, ADS Dual Wall Pipe 02/23/2016 $1,028.52
150403 Wtr-Union P/J CTS 02/26/2016 $50.67
150526 Wtr-Union P/J CTS, CTS Adapter, Brass Bushing, Adapter 03/03/2016 $238.16
150582 Wtr-Lug Nut, Rigid Copper Tubing 03/07/2016 $3,439.08

Midwest Municipal Supply Total $4,756.43
Midwest Vac Products LLC 1863 Swr-Pull Plate, Front Knife Bolts 03/03/2016 $17.00

Midwest Vac Products LLC Total $17.00
Missouri Petroleum Products Co LLC 36641 MFT-Fuel 03/02/2016 $683.20

Missouri Petroleum Products Co LLC Total $683.20
Missouri Real Estate and Insurance Agen  031416 TIF 3-Greenmount Retail Developer Costs 03/14/2016 $12,507.97

Missouri Real Estate and Insurance Agency Inc Total $12,507.97
Motor, Pump & Services 1996 WWTP-Sealmaster, Freight Chgs 02/26/2016 $3,788.32

2010 WWTP-Steam Clean Pump, Drain Oil, Pressure Test Seal Housing 03/08/2016 $1,014.87
2011 WWTP-Wear Rings, Nitrile Wear Rings 03/08/2016 $980.58

Motor, Pump & Services Total $5,783.77
MTI Distributing Inc 1049495-00 Pks/Rec-Oil Switch, Hydraulic Oil, Switch, Hydraulic or Pneumati 02/24/2016 $566.55

MTI Distributing Inc Total $566.55
Municipal Clerks of Illinois 031016 Admin-Women's Axiliary Ferrying Squadron Registration 03/10/2016 $165.00

Municipal Clerks of Illinois Total $165.00
MVI Inc P-44198-0 Wtr/Swr-SCADA Services 02/29/2016 $2,600.00

P-44300-0 Wtr/Swr-SCADA Services 03/08/2016 $2,600.00
MVI Inc Total $5,200.00

National Fire Protection Assoc 030116 FD-Subscription 03/01/2016 $175.00
031016 FD-Subscription 03/10/2016 $1,305.00

National Fire Protection Assoc Total $1,480.00
Navy Brand Manufacturing 60116 Wtr-Electrical Contact Cleaner 03/04/2016 $273.51

Navy Brand Manufacturing Total $273.51
O'Brien Tire & Service Ctr Inc 172077 Strts-Tire Repair, O Ring, Svc Call, Miles 02/12/2016 $158.00

O'Brien Tire & Service Ctr Inc Total $158.00
O'Fallon Chamber of Commerce 6500/Denton EconDev-March 9, 2016 Luncheon Meeting 03/10/2016 $12.00

O'Fallon Chamber of Commerce Total $12.00
O'Reilly Auto Parts 1151-1455316 Strts-Tire Gauge 03/09/2016 $7.98



12

474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516

A B C D E
O'Reilly Auto Parts 1151-149008 Swr-Thread Seal, AntiFreeze 03/03/2016 $85.13

1151-152312 Strts-Hyd Filters 02/22/2016 $13.90
1151-152539 Strts-Hyd Hose, MegaCrimps, Fittings 02/23/2016 $198.33
1151-152679 Strts-MegaCrimp, Hyd Fitting 02/24/2016 $17.55
1151-152931 Strts-MegaCrimps, Hyd Fittings, Filter Wrench 02/26/2016 $43.21
1151-152990 PD-Wiper Fluid 02/26/2016 $10.36
1151-153024 Strts-Solenoids 02/26/2016 $298.40
1151-153795 Strts-Battery, Term Protect 03/01/2016 $246.90
1151-153992 Strts-Ceramic Pad, Brake Rotor 03/02/2016 $119.66
1151-154022 Strts-Credit for Battery Core 03/02/2016 -$44.00
1151-154148 Strts-Oil Filters, Wiper Blades 03/03/2016 $43.63
1151-154319 Wtr-Oil/Air/Fuel/Coolant Filters, Motor Oil 03/04/2016 $694.18
1151-154329 Strts-Solenoid Refund 03/04/2016 -$298.40
1151-154344 Strts-Battery 03/04/2016 $194.54
1151-154699 EMS-JB Weld 03/06/2016 $8.49
1151-154862 Wtr-Rubber Straps 03/07/2016 $8.58
1151-155483 Sportspark-Oil/Air/Fuel Filters 02/10/2016 $44.02
1151-155557 Strts-Marker Light 03/10/2016 $3.99

O'Reilly Auto Parts Total $1,696.45
Overhead Door Company of STL SVC/484560 EMS-Replaced Two Bottom Panels, Hardware and Glass 02/22/2016 $2,492.30

SVC/484926 PD-Lubricate Door & Misc Supplies 02/24/2016 $260.30
SVC/485099 Strts-Aluminum Buttons, Ferrel Alum Duplex, Thimble, Hinge Ends 02/26/2016 $758.15

Overhead Door Company of STL Total $3,510.75
Packard, Rachael A 5998 Pks/Rec-Vinyasa Yoga 03/14/2016 $210.00

Packard, Rachael A Total $210.00
Paragon Micro Inc 646236 IT-DVD Drivers for Computers 03/03/2016 $119.95

646300 Admin,PD,CDD-Adobe Acrobat DC Software for Multiple Depts 03/04/2016 $755.97
Paragon Micro Inc Total $875.92

Pass Security LLC 333890 PD-System Monitoring 03/01/2016 $93.00
Pass Security LLC Total $93.00

Pepsi Cola Inc 34712565 Sportspark-Drink Concessions 03/09/2016 $3,165.43
Pepsi Cola Inc Total $3,165.43

Perfect Mound, The 30316A Sportspark-Atrifical Turf 03/03/2016 $75.00
Perfect Mound, The Total $75.00

Petty Cash 030116-McDonald PD-POSTAGE 03/01/2016 $11.35
Petty Cash Total $11.35

Pitney Bowes Purchase Power 022416 Wtr/Swr-Overpayment of Last Statement 02/24/2016 -$540.90
030316 Wtr/Swr-A/D Bill Mailing 03/03/2016 $2,089.04
030316B Wtr/Swr-A/D Bill Mailing 03/03/2016 $1,205.99
030816 Downstairs-Postage 03/08/2016 $1,000.00
031016 Upstairs/Downstairs-Rewards Credit 03/10/2016 -$50.00
031116 Upstairs-Postage 03/11/2016 $1,000.00
031416-Meter Upstairs/Downstairs-Meter Postage Overage Fee 03/14/2016 $15.00



13

517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559

A B C D E
Pitney Bowes Purchase Power 031416-Permit Wtr/Swr-Permit Overage Fee 03/14/2016 $66.70

Pitney Bowes Purchase Power Total $4,785.83
Prestige Commercial Services Inc 2983 CityHall-March Cleaning Fee 03/05/2016 $1,590.00

2984 CityHallAnnex-March Cleaning Fee 03/05/2016 $155.00
2985 Depot-March Cleaning Fee 03/05/2016 $301.00
2986 FD-March Cleaning Fee 03/05/2016 $150.00
2988 IT-March Cleaning Charges 03/05/2016 $445.00
2989 Strts,Wtr-March Cleaning Fee 03/05/2016 $580.00
2990 WWTP-March Cleaning Fee 03/05/2016 $60.00
2991 KCCC,RSNP,Table TakeDown/Up-March Cleaning Chgs 03/05/2016 $1,655.00
2992 Swr-March Cleaning Fee 03/05/2016 $305.00

Prestige Commercial Services Inc Total $5,241.00
Quill 3552960 Pks/Rec-Office Supplies 02/23/2016 $337.04

3572396 Pks/Rec-Metal Binders 02/24/2016 $122.97
3610158 Pks/Rec-Steel Wall Pocket 02/25/2016 $104.00

Quill Total $564.01
R P Lumber Co Inc 1603-000818 Pks/Rec-Galv Straps 03/03/2016 $4.98

1603-002307 Sportspark-Red Quad Backstop Boards 03/04/2016 $368.00
1603-018889 Strts-Black Silt Fence 03/08/2016 $30.99
1603-021058 Pks/Rec-Galv Straps 03/09/2016 $7.47
1603-495405 Strts-Galv Fence Staples 03/02/2016 $3.49

R P Lumber Co Inc Total $414.93
Randall, Justin 0117-21616 Reimb/Cell Phone Charges 02/16/2016 $30.00

1217-011616 Reimb/Cell Phone Charges 01/16/2016 $30.00
Randall, Justin Total $60.00

Red-E-Mix LLC 770729 Strts-4000 PSI o/s Flatwork, Winter Service 02/29/2016 $400.75
Red-E-Mix LLC Total $400.75

Rejis Commission INV0046848 IT-February Regis Bill 02/29/2016 $14,238.00
Rejis Commission Total $14,238.00

Rhutasel and Associates 12343 Strts-Presidential Streets 03/09/2016 $2,800.00
12344 Strts-Presidential Streets 03/09/2016 $9,266.25

Rhutasel and Associates Total $12,066.25
Ronnoco Coffee LLC 1001538647 Wtr-Coffee 03/11/2016 $42.39

1001538691 Downstairs-Coffee 03/11/2016 $148.96
Ronnoco Coffee LLC Total $191.35

Sherbut-Carson-Claxton LLC 8893 Swr-Augusta/Smiley Sanitary Swr Repl 03/02/2016 $1,020.00
8894 Swr-Lincoln Farm Lift Station 03/02/2016 $1,927.00

Sherbut-Carson-Claxton LLC Total $2,947.00
Shur Clean Carpet Care 031216 Clean & Sanitize Carpet 03/12/2016 $295.00

Feb 2016 CH,Dep,Pks,FD-Mat Service 03/10/2016 $204.00
Shur Clean Carpet Care Total $499.00

SLACMA 012716/Denton EconDev-2016 Annual Dues 01/27/2016 $50.00
SLACMA Total $50.00



14

560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602

A B C D E
Sonnenberg Asphalt Co Inc 310705 Pks/Rec-Playland Mulch, Rocksprings 02/19/2016 $1,179.00

Sonnenberg Asphalt Co Inc Total $1,179.00
Southern Illinois Wastewater 10492 Swr-RTC Registration (Berkel, Seger, Renner, Vicik) 03/07/2016 $80.00

Southern Illinois Wastewater Total $80.00
Southwestern Illinois College 25001288-030916 FD-Firefighter Training 03/09/2016 $4,805.00

Southwestern Illinois College Total $4,805.00
Spectra Graphics Inc 28692 Pks/Rec-Glee Camp Shirts 03/03/2016 $242.55

Spectra Graphics Inc Total $242.55
St Louis Scott Gallagher 031416-U11G Pks/Rec-U11G Tournament/Hamm 03/14/2016 $725.00

031516-U9B Pks/Rec-U9B Tournament/Hoover 03/15/2016 $495.00
St Louis Scott Gallagher Total $1,220.00

State Industrial Products Corp 97685090 WWTP-Drain Maintenance Program 03/01/2016 $469.00
97685092 WWTP-Wastewater Treatment Program 03/01/2016 $400.00

State Industrial Products Corp Total $869.00
Statewide Tire of St Louis 100076250 EMS-Tires 12/14/2015 $1,600.16

Statewide Tire of St Louis Total $1,600.16
Stericycle Inc 4006145341 EMS-Training 03/01/2016 $195.54

Stericycle Inc Total $195.54
Stimson, Peg 031316 Reimb/Garden Club Supplies 03/13/2016 $122.17

Stimson, Peg Total $122.17
Strohl, Jane FY16-HS FY2016 Healthy Spending Reimb 02/16/2016 $75.00

Strohl, Jane Total $75.00
SW Electric Cooperative Inc 030416 Strts-Witte Farms Street Lighting 03/04/2016 $389.64

SW Electric Cooperative Inc Total $389.64
Teklab Inc 183382 WWTP-Prairie Farms BOD/TSS 03/03/2016 $2,046.00

183465 WWTP-Pet Dairy Weekly 03/07/2016 $613.23
183695 WWTP-Pet Dairy Weekly 03/14/2016 $613.23

Teklab Inc Total $3,272.46
Terminix 352871215 FD-Pest Control/528 W Hwy 50 02/04/2016 $45.00

352871216 FD-Pest Control/106 E Washington St 02/04/2016 $42.00
352871335 FD,EMS-Pest Control/102 Oak St 02/04/2016 $38.00

Terminix Total $125.00
Tessco Inc 564380 FD-Double Socket/Base Mount, Single Socket 02/22/2016 $158.88

602548 FD-Back-Ordered Locking Cradles for iPads Air w/Case 03/03/2016 $449.69
Tessco Inc Total $608.57

Thomson West 833559884 WEST INFORMATION CHARGES 02/29/2016 $296.15
Thomson West Total $296.15

Thouvenot, Wade & Moerchen Inc 54776 Wtr-Union Hill Rd Watermain Ext 02/29/2016 $112.00
54864 Misty Valley Repl Lift Station, Review of Pump Station Submittal 02/29/2016 $1,372.00

Thouvenot, Wade & Moerchen Inc Total $1,484.00
Trent, William J 5989-5990 Pks/Rec-Advanced/Beginner Waltz 03/14/2016 $672.00

Trent, William J Total $672.00
Tyler Technologies 48231 Wtr/Swr-Travel Time and Expenses for Training 02/26/2016 $1,350.09



15

603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642

A B C D E
Tyler Technologies 48396 FD-Aegis 2016 Customer Conference/Harris, Erick 03/03/2016 $2,065.00

48397 FD-Aegis 2016 Customer Conference/Claxton, Tim 03/03/2016 $2,065.00
Tyler Technologies Total $5,480.09

Uline Inc 74720007 Sportspark-Closed Ind Stl Shelving 02/22/2016 $990.72
74996481 FD-Flr Red Job Ticket Holder, Hand-Held Traffic Sign 03/02/2016 $283.92

Uline Inc Total $1,274.64
USA Blue Book 884573 Wtr,WWTP-Lab Supplies 02/29/2016 $283.80

884574 WWTP,Wtr-Lab Supplies 02/29/2016 $166.77
884582 WWTP,Wtr-Lab Supplies 02/29/2016 $1,010.04
884595 WWTP-TriCorner Beakers 02/29/2016 $96.07

USA Blue Book Total $1,556.68
VanHook, Eric 55439 Reimb/Conference Lodging 02/26/2016 $100.80

VanHook, Eric Total $100.80
Village of Shiloh 0120-021816 FD-Monthly Utilities/102 N Oak St 02/19/2016 $204.02

0121-021816 FD-Monthly Utilities/102 N Oak St 02/23/2016 $321.56
Village of Shiloh Total $525.58

Warning Lites of Southern Illinois LLC 4559 Strts-Speed Limit Signs 03/04/2016 $57.80
Warning Lites of Southern Illinois LLC Total $57.80

Weil-Lombardo Trailers Inc 10190 Strts-Hitch Ball, Forged Shank Combo, Hitch Pin & Clip 03/02/2016 $130.85
10289 Pks-Rec-7 Way Trailer End, Loom, Plug 03/07/2016 $88.93

Weil-Lombardo Trailers Inc Total $219.78
Wild, Jeff FY16-HS FY2016 Healthy Spending Reimb 02/23/2016 $75.00

Wild, Jeff Total $75.00
Winkler, Bob 011916 Reimb/Mower Repairs, Grape Arbor Lumber 01/19/2016 $234.07

030116 Reimb/Garden Club Seeds, Seed Potatoes & Onion Sets 03/01/2016 $88.70
030316 Reimb/Shed 03/03/2016 $2,862.00

Winkler, Bob Total $3,184.77
Wireless USA 240990 PD-Flat Rate Repair 02/23/2016 $375.00

Wireless USA Total $375.00
Witmer Public Safety Group Inc E1446816 FD-Lenzing Economy Natural Hood, Helmets 02/29/2016 $1,027.02

Witmer Public Safety Group Inc Total $1,027.02
Work Center Inc, The 332 EMS-Paramedics/Justin Verner & Gary Hutchison 02/18/2016 $300.00

Work Center Inc, The Total $300.00
Wright Automotive Inc 031616 State of Illinois Contract # 4018223 03/16/2016 $26,462.00

Wright Automotive Inc Total $26,462.00
Wright Express 44246179 Monthly Fuel Charges 02/29/2016 $15,562.38

Wright Express Total $15,562.38
Wright, Jessica 031116 Pks/Rec-Glee Camp Sound 03/11/2016 $50.00

Wright, Jessica Total $50.00
Grand Total $806,481.77



CITY OF O’FALLON 
Park & Environment Committee 

March 14, 2016 
6:00 P.M 
Public Safety Building 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Parks & Environment Committee of the City of O'Fallon, held in the Public Safety 
Building Community Room, 285 S. Seven Hills Rd, O’Fallon, Illinois March 14, 2016 

 

I. Attendance: MEMBERS X    Holden, Chair (6) 
  X    Gerrish, Vice Chair 

X    Albrecht (2) 
X    Meile (1) 
X    Hagarty (3) 
      Mouser (3) 
X    Smallheer (4) 

  II.     Council:    Drolet; Kueker McCoskey; Roach 
           Guests:     Kasten; Malare; Pitts; R. Zelms  
           Staff:        Dallner; Denton; Evans; Funk; Hutchison 

                    Meeting called to order at   6:03p.m. 
 

  III.   Minutes:  January 11, 2016 
  Motion:    Meile motion to approve the minutes 

January 11, 2016 Meeting 
  Second:    Hagarty 
  Discussed:  N/A 
  Approved:   All 
 

  IV.    Item 1:“Budget FY17 Review” 
Staff review all accomplishments as listed on the attached         
budget information sheets.  FY2016 Projects were reviewed.  
FY2017 Projects and equipment were discussed.  Three 
studies are underway with the following anticipated 
completion dates. 
1. Community Center:  March Completion/April Committee 

Review;  Study by Ballard*King 
2. GCI/Game-On: Public/Private Partnership of Turf Fields & 

Event Development;  April Completion; Study by Game-On 
3. Economic Impact Study of Sport Park & Park System to 

the Community; April/May Completion; Study by 
Development Strategies 

 
Item 2:  Special Event Sign Permit:  OPRD is requesting a 
special event permit to display 4 by 4 foot signs around 
O’Fallon adverting our “School’s Out Program.”  
Motion:  Meile motion to recommend approval to City 

Council. 
Second:  Smallheer 
Discussion: Installation at the Milburn Roundabout  
Approved: All 



 
 
ADJOURN Motion:  Smallheer 
Second:             Meile 
Approved:              All  
 
PREPARED BY:  MJ Hutchison 
Next Possible Meeting: April 11, 2016 
 
 



 

 



 

 


	160331AgendaCoded
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	III.   ROLL CALL
	IV.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 7, 2016
	A. Residents of O’Fallon – This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for any resident wishing to address Council. The Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1) mandates NO action shall be taken on matters not listed on this agenda,  but Cou...

	VII. RESOLUTIONS –

	VIII.  ORDINANCES


	160307CCM
	Item 1 Rieder Rd Staff Report
	Item 1 Rieder Rd Resolution
	Item 1 Reider Agreement
	Item 1 Reider Map
	Item 2 Coordinated Communications Staff Rpt
	Item 2 Shiloh Contract
	Item 3 SRO OTHS Staff Report
	Item 3 SRO Agreement
	Item 3 SRO OTHS Resolution
	Item 4 ITI Staff Report
	Item 4 - ITI Hosted Quote
	Item 4 ITI Data Conversion Quote
	Item 4 ITI Resolution
	Item 5 - CR Holland Staff Report
	Item 5 - CR Holland Ordinance
	Item 5 - CR Holland PC Report
	Item 6 - SWIDA Staff Report
	Item 6 - SWIDA Ordinance
	CD OCR Tropical Sno Huts Staff Report
	CD - Summer Camp Staff Report
	CD - Summer Camp Application
	Application
	PARKS AND REC 4x4 SUMMER CAMP SIGNS 3

	CD - Trop Sno OCR Application
	CD - Trop Sno Ace Application
	PS Minutes
	Warramt Report Packet 3-22-16
	warrant letter memo
	MEMO
	To:   City Clerk, Phil Goodwin
	CITY OF O’FALLON

	The Mayor and the City Council of the City of O'Fallon, Illinois, hereby approve the attached list of bills and authorize the Director of Finance to forward payment on the  22nd of March, 2016.  The Office of Finance is hereby authorized to borrow fro...
	________________________
	Gary Graham, Mayor
	ATTEST:
	_____________________________________

	Warrant Report 3-22-16
	Sheet1


	Parks and Env Minutes
	Parks Min Budget Item

	Return to Agenda: 


